

Level 8, Carillon City Office Tower 207 Murray Street Perth, WA 6000 Post Office Box Z5736 Perth, Western Australia 6831 T 08 6460 0360

F 08 6460 0361

■ info@resdevgroup.com.au

www.resdevgroup.com.au

28 August 2014

The Manager
Company Announcements
ASX Limited
Level 8, Exchange Plaza
2 The Esplanade
PERTH WA 6000

Via e-lodgement

Resource Development Group Limited's Annual Financial Results

Results for Announcement to the Market

The operating results for the year to 30 June 2014 are shown with comparisons to the previous corresponding period, being the year ended 30 June 2013.

Revenues from continuing activities	Down	74%	to	\$26,706,617
Loss from ordinary activities after tax attributable to members	Down	78%	to	(\$1,308,493)
Comprehensive loss for the year attributable to members	Down	78%	to	(\$1,318,853)

Dividends

No dividends were paid during the financial year. The Board advises that it does not intend to declare a final dividend for the financial year.

Net Tangible Assets / Earnings Per Share

	30 June 2014	30 June 2013
Net tangible assets per share (cents per share)	2.52	2.22
Basic loss per share (cents per share)	(0.99)	(4.53)

Independent Audit Report

The information outlined above is presented in accordance with ASX Listing Rule 4.3A and the *Corporations Act 2001*. The Appendix 4E is based on the audited Annual Report for the year ended 30 June 2014. The Independent Audit Report is included in the Annual Report attached.

Accounting Policies, Estimation Methods and Measurements

The accounting policies, estimation methods and measurement bases used in the Appendix 4E is the same as those used in the previous annual report and interim financial report.

Explanation of Result

Total revenues decreased by 74% for the year ended 30 June 2014 due to difficult market conditions however the Group held onto a reasonable market share of available work from clients under intense competitive pressure.

Net profit after tax for the year ended 30 June 2014 was negatively impacted by a non-cash impairment charge of \$1,500,000 (compared with \$7,769,067 in 2013). This write down resulted in a net loss after tax of \$1,308,493 compared to the net loss of \$5,900,390 in 2013.

Notwithstanding the difficult market conditions, the Group continued their focus on paying down borrowings associated with previous subsidiary acquisitions. Borrowings were reduced by \$3,602,531 (2013: \$1,863,120) during the year leaving total borrowings at \$4,075,353 at 30 June 2014.

On behalf of the Board and Management, I would like to take the opportunity to assure shareholders that the Group is committed in 2015 and beyond to provide a platform on which to build further value. We are optimistic about the future and are confident we can deliver on our operational and financial goals.

Yours sincerely

M. Ashtan

Mel Ashton

Chairman



Resource Development Group Limited

ABN 33 149 028 142

Annual Report 30 JUNE 2014

Resource Development Group Limited

ABN 33 149 028 142

Annual Report 30 JUNE 2014

Contents	Page
Corporate Information	2
Directors' Report	3
Corporate Governance Statement	15
Auditor's Independence Declaration	23
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income	24
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position	25
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity	26
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows	27
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements	28
Directors' Declaration	63
Independent Auditor's Report	64
ASX Additional Information	66

CORPORATE INFORMATION

ABN 33 149 028 142

Directors

Mr. Mel Ashton, Non-Executive Chairman

Mr. Jeff Brill, Managing Director

Mr. Damir Panzich, Executive Director

Mr. Chris Ryan, Non-Executive Director

Company secretary

Mr. Mark Pugsley

Registered office

Level 8, Carillon City Office Tower 207 Murray Street, PERTH, WA 6000 Telephone: +61 8 6460 0360 Facsimile: +61 8 6460 0361

Principal place of business

Level 8, Carillon City Office Tower 207 Murray Street, PERTH, WA 6000 Telephone: +61 8 6460 0360 Facsimile: +61 8 6460 0361

Website: www.resdevgroup.com.au

Share register

Security Transfer Registrars Pty Ltd 770 Canning Highway, APPLECROSS, WA 6153

Telephone: +61 8 9315 2333 Facsimile: +61 8 9315 2233

Solicitors

Hilary Macdonald Corporate & Resources Lawyer Suite 29, 18 Stirling Highway, NEDLANDS, WA 6009

Bankers

Westpac Banking Corporation 7 & 9A Queen Street, FREMANTLE, WA 6160

Auditors

HLB Mann Judd Level 4, 130 Stirling Street, PERTH, WA 6000

Securities exchange listing

Resource Development Group Limited shares are listed on the Australian Securities Exchange (ASX: RDG)

DIRECTORS' REPORT

Your directors submit the annual financial report of the consolidated entity (or "Group") consisting of Resource Development Group Limited ("Company") and the entities it controlled during the period for the financial year ended 30 June 2014. In order to comply with the provisions of the Corporations Act 2001, the directors report as follows:

Directors

The names of directors who held office throughout the year and until the date of this report are as follows. Directors were in office for this entire period unless otherwise stated.

Names, qualifications, experience and special responsibilities

Mr Mel Ashton (Non-Executive Chairman)

Mr Ashton holds a Bachelor of Commerce degree from the University of Western Australia, is a fellow of the Institute of Chartered Accountants and a fellow of the Australian Institute of Company Directors.

Mr Ashton also currently holds a number of board appointments, including President of Chartered Accountants Australia and New Zealand and a Director of The Hawaiian Group of Companies.

In the three years immediately before the end of the financial year, Mr Ashton also served as a director of the following listed companies:

- Empired Limited since 2005*
- Gryphon Minerals Limited since 2004*
- Venture Minerals Limited since 2006*
- Barra Resources Limited from 2011 to January 2013
- Renaissance Minerals Limited from 2010 to March 2014

Mr Ashton is a member of the Company's Audit Committee and is Chairman of the Nomination and Remuneration Committees.

Mr Jeff Brill (Managing Director)

Mr Brill holds a Bachelor of Engineering degree (First Class Honours) from the University of Western Australia and is a member of the Australian Institute of Company Directors. Mr Brill has over 20 years' experience in project management and engineering and was a founding director of Engenium Pty Ltd. Between 1998 and 2003, Mr Brill was employed as a senior project engineer for a number of companies including Rio Tinto and the Clough Group. Mr Brill was Engenium Pty Ltd's ("Engenium") managing director from inception in July 2003 until June 2010.

In the three years immediately before the end of the financial year, Mr Brill has not served as a director of any other listed companies.

Mr Damir Panzich (Executive Director)

Mr Panzich holds a Bachelor of Engineering degree from the University of Western Australia and is a member of the Australian Institute of Company Directors. Mr Panzich has over 20 years' experience in project management and engineering including various project and construction management roles and senior project engineering roles between 1992 and 2009 for companies such as Rio Tinto and BHP Billiton particularly in relation to feasibility studies and construction projects including new railway infrastructure in Western Australia. Mr Panzich was a founding shareholder of Engenium.

Mr Panzich was also an executive director of Calibre Engenium Joint Venture Pty Ltd.

Mr Panzich is a member of the Company's Audit, Nomination and Remuneration Committees.

In the three years immediately before the end of the financial year, Mr Panzich has not served as a director of any other listed companies.

^{*} denotes current directorships

Directors (continued)

Mr Chris Ryan (Non-Executive Director)

Mr Ryan holds a Bachelor of Business degree, is a fellow of the Australian Human Resources Institute, a fellow of the Australian Institute of Management and a graduate member of the Australian Institute of Company Directors.

Mr Ryan has over 20 years' experience in senior Human Resources (HR) roles, including General Manager of Human Resources for Wesfarmers Limited between 1999 and 2008 where he was responsible for the HR aspects of acquisitions. He currently provides corporate advisory services, is a member of Curtin University's School of Management Advisory Board (since 2008), and serves as an Adjunct Professor to the Curtin Business School.

Mr Ryan is a member of the Company's Nomination and Remuneration Committees, and is Chairman of the Audit Committee.

In the three years immediately before the end of the financial year, Mr Ryan has not served as a director of any other listed companies.

Company Secretary

Mr Mark Pugsley

Mr Pugsley holds a Bachelor of Commerce degree, is an associate member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in Australia and a graduate member of the Australian Institute of Company Directors. Mark has held Chief Financial Officer or General Manager roles in a number of financial services organisations and was Director of Finance and Company Secretary from 2004 to 2011 with RBS Morgans Limited and WA state director for RBS Morgans Limited from July 2011 to July 2012.

Interests in the shares and options of the company and related bodies corporate

The following relevant interests in shares of the Company or a related body corporate were held by the directors as at the date of this report.

Directors	Number of fully paid ordinary shares
Mr Mel Ashton	250,000
Mr Jeff Brill*	75,889,606
Mr Damir Panzich*	76,014,606
Mr Chris Ryan	125,000

^{*} Mr Brill and Mr Panzich are shareholders and directors of Lightshare Investments Pty Ltd which holds 75,889,606 shares in the Company.

Dividends

No dividends have been paid or declared during the financial year.

Principal Activities

The principal activities of the entities within the consolidated entity during the year were the provision of engineering, construction and consulting services to mining companies.

Review of 2014

The financial year ended 30 June 2014 has provided continuing challenging market conditions in which Resource Development Group Limited ("RDG") achieved respectable revenues and held onto a reasonable market share of available work from clients under intense competitive pressure.

The Australian resources sector has experienced highly competitive and challenging conditions for a sustained period of time and, as part of its strategy to navigate these conditions, RDG completed the co-location of all of its four operating subsidiaries into one location throughout the year. The benefits of this co-location include improved synergies between subsidiaries, improved communication and operating practices and the ability to share resources. Corporate services have been moved to the Group level and rationalised to provide consistency and maximise cost benefits. Each operating subsidiary continues under its own branding and management but will enjoy an increased advantage of being part of the Group of companies. Cost savings from the co-location including reductions in lease costs and reduction in corporate personnel costs will not be fully realised until the financial year ending 2015.

RDG continued to reduce debt during the year and strengthening our balance sheet remains one of our primary goals.

Highlights from 2014 include:

- Revenues of \$26,706,617, down 74% on the previous year but achieved under difficult market conditions
- Loss after tax of \$1,308,493 achieved under difficult market conditions, after impairment of \$1,500,000
- Completion of the co-location of all subsidiaries into our Perth offices
- · Consolidation of corporate services at the Group level to provide consistency and cost benefits
- Continued work for major blue chip clients including Fortescue Metals Group, BHP Billiton Iron Ore and Rio Tinto Iron Ore

Operations

Resource Development Group has four operating subsidiaries:

- Ecologia Environmental Consultants Pty Ltd ("Ecologia"), which specialises in environmental management and biological sciences consulting services to the resources, energy and infrastructure sectors of Australia and internationally
- Engenium Pty Ltd ("Engenium"), which provides project delivery services ranging from studies through to
 detailed engineering solutions and engineering, procurement and construction management (EPCM) services to
 the resources and infrastructure sectors of Australia and internationally
- Intellect Systems Pty Ltd ("Intellect"), a specialist provider of end to end industrial technology solutions in control systems and automation, electrical engineering and industrial information technology to the resources, energy and infrastructure sectors of Australia and internationally
- Pacer Corporation Pty Ltd ("Pacer"), a provider of low cost, high value, multi-discipline engineering and construction solutions to the Australian resources sector.

Sustaining works for major blue chip clients have provided a good base load of work for the Group throughout the year. Engenium provided services via several multi-year contracts for a range of large mining clients including BHP Billiton Iron Ore, Rio Tinto Iron Ore and Fortescue Metals Group and some smaller clients including SMC, Rutila and Eastern Iron. During the year Engenium also achieved triple accreditation by SAI Global to ISO 14001:2004 for Environmental, AS/NZS 4801:2001 for OHS, ISO 9001:2008 for Quality. Ecologia continued with numerous packages of work for Fortescue Metals Group including a multi-year contract for monitoring services, work for Polaris Metals and completed work for a project in Ecuador as a direct outcome of the previous work completed for the Government of Ecuador. Pacer completed minor design and EPC works for existing operators. Intellect Systems continued works for a strategic supplier of major equipment to large mining clients, Enerflex and Fortescue Metals Group whilst providing support and optimisation works for several operating mines and long term clients.

Workforce Capacity and Capability

Staff numbers have decreased slightly over the past year, with the Group matching personnel numbers to available workload. As at 30 June 2014 Resource Development Group Limited employed 144 people, slightly down on the previous year. Each subsidiary continues to carry a core capability skillset that can be rapidly increased to meet project requirements without compromising quality of service, nor carrying excessive overhead. In addition resources can be seamlessly moved between subsidiaries to address project requirements.

Strategy and Outlook

Resource Development Group Limited remains committed to building a diversified services business using a combination of organic growth, exploitation of intercompany synergies and further acquisitions. Whilst the bulk of our revenue in the year was derived from the resources sector, significant inroads continue to be made against our strategic plan for 2012 to 2016. This plan is underpinned by consolidation of operations in Western Australia followed by geographical and sector diversification within Australia and then internationally. Potential acquisitions that fit with this strategy were identified and investigated throughout the year.

Resource Development Group Limited has a focus on flexibility and growing our recurring revenue streams to provide resilience in dynamic markets. We have co-located our operations in Perth and will benefit from the synergies of this over the coming year. These include allowing us to all work smarter as a Group and providing for further cost savings. We have continued to maintain a presence on the east coast of Australia; however growth in that location remains limited at the moment.

The targets of becoming a resilient business with the ability to navigate challenging market conditions, whilst strengthening our balance sheet remain our primary goals. We are optimistic about the future and are confident we can deliver on our operational and financial goals for 2015.

Information on the financial position of the Group is set out on pages 24 to 62 of the annual report.

Operating results for the year

The Group reported a net loss after income tax for the reporting year ended 30 June 2014 of \$1,308,493 (2013: loss before tax of \$5,900,390). Revenues from continuing operations were \$26,706,617, down 74% on the previous year of \$102,527,837.

Risk management

The Group has taken decisions as to how it should manage the various categories of risk exposure and they include the imposition of Standard Operating Procedures (SOP's) for routine business transactions; and mitigation initiatives such as insurance policies to lessen or obviate risks.

Significant changes in the state of affairs

There have been no significant changes in the state of affairs of the consolidated entity to the date of this report.

Significant events after balance date

On 4 August 2014, the Company entered into a conditional agreement to acquire 100% of share capital of leading diversified contractor Central Systems Pty Ltd for a total of 497,175,172 Resource Development Group Limited shares. The acquisition is subject to shareholder approval.

Likely developments and expected results

Disclosure of information regarding likely developments in the operations of the consolidated entity in future financial years and the expected results of those operations is likely to result in unreasonable prejudice to the consolidated entity. Therefore, this information has not been presented in this report.

Environmental legislation

The consolidated entity is not subject to any significant environmental legislation.

Indemnification and insurance of Directors and Officers

The Company has agreed to indemnify all the directors of the Company for any liabilities to another person (other than the Company or related body corporate) that may arise from their position as directors of the Company and its controlled entities, except where the liability arises out of conduct involving a lack of good faith.

During the financial year the Company paid a premium in respect of a contract insuring the directors and officers of the Company and its controlled entities against any liability incurred in the course of their duties to the extent permitted by the Corporations Act 2001. The contract of insurance prohibits disclosure of the nature of the liability and the amount of the premium.

Remuneration report

This report outlines the remuneration arrangements in place for the key management personnel of Resource Development Group Limited for the financial year ended 30 June 2014. The information provided in this remuneration report has been audited as required by Section 308(3C) of the Corporations Act 2001.

The remuneration report details the remuneration arrangements for key management personnel ("KMP") who are defined as those persons having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the major activities of the Company and the Group, directly or indirectly, including any director (whether executive or otherwise) of the parent company.

Key management personnel

(i) Directors

Mr Mel Ashton (Non-Executive Chairman) Mr Jeff Brill (Managing Director) Mr Damir Panzich (Executive Director) Mr Chris Ryan (Non-Executive Director)

(ii) Executives

Mr Mark Pugsley (Chief Financial Officer)

Remuneration philosophy

The performance of the Company depends upon the quality of the directors and executives. The philosophy of the Company in determining remuneration levels is to:

- set competitive remuneration packages to attract and retain high calibre employees;
- link executive rewards to shareholder value creation; and
- establish appropriate, demanding performance hurdles for variable executive remuneration.

Remuneration committee

The Remuneration Committee of the Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for determining and reviewing compensation arrangements for the directors, the CEO and the executive team.

The Remuneration Committee assesses the appropriateness of the nature and amount of remuneration of directors and executives on a periodic basis by reference to relevant employment market conditions with an overall objective of ensuring maximum stakeholder benefit from the retention of a high quality Board and executive team.

Remuneration report (continued)

Remuneration structure

In accordance with best practice corporate governance, the structure of non-executive director and executive remuneration is separate and distinct.

Non-executive director remuneration

The Board seeks to set aggregate remuneration at a level that provides the Company with the ability to attract and retain directors of the highest calibre, whilst incurring a cost that is acceptable to shareholders.

The ASX Listing Rules specify that the aggregate remuneration of non-executive directors shall be determined from time to time by a general meeting. The latest determination was at a General Meeting held on 3 February 2011 when shareholders approved an aggregate remuneration of \$500,000 per year.

The amount of aggregate remuneration sought to be approved by shareholders and the manner in which it is apportioned amongst directors is reviewed annually. The Board considers advice from external shareholders as well as the fees paid to non-executive directors of comparable companies when undertaking the annual review process.

Each director receives a fee for being a director of the Company, and includes any committee on which a director sits.

The remuneration of directors for the year ended 30 June 2014 is detailed in Table 1 of this report.

Senior manager and executive director remuneration

Remuneration consists of fixed remuneration and variable remuneration (comprising short-term and long-term incentive schemes).

Fixed remuneration

Fixed remuneration is reviewed annually by the Remuneration Committee. The process consists of a review of relevant comparative remuneration in the market and internally and, where appropriate, external advice on policies and practices. The Committee has access to external, independent advice where necessary.

Senior managers are given the opportunity to receive their fixed (primary) remuneration in a variety of forms including cash and fringe benefits such as motor vehicles and expense payment plans. It is intended that the manner of payment chosen will be optimal for the recipient without creating undue cost for the Group.

The fixed remuneration component of the key management personnel is detailed in Table 1 of this report.

Variable remuneration

The objective of the short term incentive program is to link the achievement of the Group's operational targets with the remuneration received by the executives charged with meeting those targets. The total potential short term incentive available is set at a level so as to provide sufficient incentive to the senior manager to achieve the operational targets and such that the cost to the Group is reasonable in the circumstances.

Actual payments granted to each senior manager depend on the extent to which specific operating targets set at the beginning of the financial year are met.

The aggregate of annual payments available for executives across the Group is subject to the approval of the Remuneration Committee. Payments made are delivered as a cash bonus in the following reporting period.

The Company also makes long term incentive payments to reward senior executives in a manner that aligns this element of remuneration with the creation of shareholder wealth.

No bonus payments were made during the year (2013: \$64,232).

Remuneration report (continued)

Employment contracts

Mr Jeff Brill (Managing Director)

The Company has continued a Service Agreement effective 8 February 2011 with Jeff Brill, employing him as Managing Director for an indefinite term commencing 8 February 2011, for Total Fixed Remuneration ("TFR") of \$320,000 per annum, and an annual incentive capped at 30% of TFR, resulting in total possible remuneration of approximately \$416,000 per annum for the financial year ended 30 June 2014.

The incentive targets which must be met to receive the incentive component of the remuneration package will be set at the beginning of each financial year. A portion of Mr Brill's remuneration is therefore 'at risk', subject to achievement of key performance measures set by the Board which for the current financial year include NPAT (50% of incentive target), and strategic corporate goals (50% of incentive target).

The agreement may be terminated by either party giving three months' written notice, or terminated immediately with cause. Restraint and non solicitation provisions will apply for six months following termination of the contract, and other usual and appropriate commercial conditions of employment are included to protect the interests of the Company during and following his term of employment.

Mr Damir Panzich (Executive Director)

The Company has continued a Service Agreement effective 6 February 2012 with Damir Panzich, employing him as Executive Director for an indefinite term commencing 6 February 2012, for TFR of \$290,000 per annum, and an annual incentive capped at 30% of TFR, resulting in total possible remuneration of approximately \$377,000 per annum for the year ended 30 June 2014.

The incentive targets which must be met to receive the incentive component of the remuneration package will be set at the beginning of each financial year. A portion of Mr Panzich's remuneration is therefore 'at risk', subject to achievement of key performance measures set by the Board which for the current financial year include project development (40% of incentive target), and securing new contracts (50% of incentive target) and assistance with organic growth (10% of incentive target).

The agreement may be terminated by either party giving three months' written notice, or terminated immediately with cause. Restraint and non solicitation provisions will apply for six months following termination of the contract, and other usual and appropriate commercial conditions of employment are included to protect the interests of the Company during and following his term of employment.

Mr Mark Pugsley (Chief Financial Officer/Company Secretary)

The Company has entered into a Service Agreement effective 3 December 2012 with Mark Pugsley, employing him as Chief Financial Officer / Company Secretary for an indefinite term commencing 3 December 2012 for a TFR of \$225,000 per annum.

The agreement may be terminated by either party giving three months' written notice, or terminated immediately with cause. Restraint and non solicitation provisions will apply for six months following termination of the contract, and other usual and appropriate commercial conditions of employment are included to protect the interests of the Company during and following his term of employment.

Remuneration report (continued)

Remuneration of directors and named executives

Table 1: Key Management Personnel remuneration for the years ended 30 June 2014 and 30 June 2013

			Short-term e	mployee benefits		Post- employment benefits	Other long- term benefits	Equity		
		Salary & fees \$	Bonuses \$	Non-monetary benefits \$	Other \$	Super- annuation \$	Long-service leave \$	Incentives \$	Total \$	Performance related %
Mr Mel Ashton	2014	65,004	-	-	-	-	-	-	65,004	-
	2013	65,004	-	-	-	-	-	196	65,200	-
Mr Jeff Brill	2014	257,432	-	-	-	23,798	-		281,230	-
	2013	276,063	48,750	-	-	24,815	-	-	349,628	13.9
Mr Damir Panzich	2014	151,390	-	-	-	14,323	-		165,713	-
	2013	247,056	-	-	-	24,672	-	-	271,728	-
Mr Chris Ryan	2014	45,000	-	-	-	-	-	-	45,000	-
	2013	45,000	-	-	-	-	-	196	45,196	-
Mr Mark Pugsley	2014	177,442	-	-	-	16,413	-	9,000	202,855	-
	2013	111,944	-	-	-	10,075	-	-	122,019	-
Mr Troy Ventriss	2014	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
	2013	120,154	15,482	-	-	12,102	-	-	147,738	10.5

No options were granted during the year.

Remuneration report (continued)

Key Management Personnel equity holdings

Ordinary shares held in Resource Development Group Limited (number)

30 June 2014	Balance at beginning of period	Granted as remuneration	On exercise of incentives	Net change other	Balance at end of period
Directors					
Mr Mel Ashton	250,000	-	-	-	250,000
Mr Jeff Brill ¹	75,889,606	-	-	-	75,889,606
Mr Damir Panzich ¹	76,014,606	-	-	-	76,014,606
Mr Chris Ryan	125,000	-	-	-	125,000
Executives					
Mr Mark Pugsley	300,000	-	-	-	300,000
30 June 2013					
Directors					
Mr Mel Ashton	187,500	-	62,500	-	250,000
Mr Jeff Brill ¹	75,889,606	-	-	-	75,889,606
Mr Damir Panzich ¹	75,889,606	-	-	125,000	76,014,606
Mr Chris Ryan	62,500	-	62,500	-	125,000
Executives					
Mr Mark Pugsley	-	-	-	300,000	300,000

¹ Mr Brill and Mr Panzich are shareholders of Lightshare Investments Pty Ltd which holds 75,889,606 shares in the Company.

All equity transactions with key management personnel have been entered into under terms and conditions no more favourable than those the Group would have adopted if dealing at arm's length.

Remuneration report (continued)

Key Management Personnel equity holdings (continued)

Incentives held in Resource Development Group Limited (number)

30 June 2014	Balance at beginning of period	Granted as remuneration	On exercise of incentives	Net change other	Balance at end of period
Directors					
Mr Mel Ashton	-	-	-	-	-
Mr Jeff Brill	-	-	-	-	-
Mr Damir Panzich	-	-	-	-	-
Mr Chris Ryan	-	-	-	-	-
Executives					
Mr Mark Pugsley	-	500,000	-	-	500,000
30 June 2013					
Directors					
Mr Mel Ashton	62,500	-	(62,500)	-	-
Mr Jeff Brill	-	-	-	-	-
Mr Damir Panzich	-	-	-	-	-
Mr Chris Ryan	62,500	-	(62,500)	-	-
Executives					
Mr Mark Pugsley	-	-	-	-	-

Details of employee share option plans

Under the terms of the plan, the Board may offer free options to persons ("Eligible Persons") who are full-time or part-time employees (including a person engaged by the Company under a consultancy agreement); or Directors of the Company or any subsidiary based on a number of criteria including contribution to the Company, period of employment, potential contribution to the Company in the future and other factors the Board considers relevant. Upon receipt of such an offer, the Eligible Person may nominate an associate to be issued with the options. The maximum number of options issued under the Plan at any one time is 5% of the total number of Shares on issue in the Company provided that the Board may increase this percentage, subject to the Corporations Act and the Listing Rules.

Each option entitles the holder, on exercise, to one ordinary fully paid share in the Company. There is no issue price for the options. The exercise price for the options will be such price as determined by the Board (in its discretion) on or before the date of issue provided that in no event shall the exercise price be less than 80% of the weighted average sale price of Shares sold on ASX during the five Business Days prior to the date of issue.

Shares issued on exercise of options will rank equally with other ordinary shares of the Company.

Options may not be transferred other than to a nominee of the holder. Quotation of options on ASX will not be sought. However, the Company will apply to ASX for official quotation of Shares issued on the exercise of options.

An option may only be exercised after that option has vested and any other conditions imposed by the Board on exercise satisfied. The Board may determine the vesting period (if any). An option will lapse upon the first to occur of the expiry date, the holder acting fraudulently or dishonestly in relation to the Company, the employee ceasing to be employed by the Company or on certain conditions associated with a party acquiring a 90% interest in the Shares of the Company.

Remuneration report (continued)

Details of employee share option plans (continued)

If, in the opinion of the Board any of the following has occurred or is likely to occur, the Company entering into a scheme of arrangement, the commencement of a takeover bid for the Company's Shares, or a party acquiring a sufficient interest in the Company to enable them to replace the Board, the Board may declare an option to be free of any conditions of exercise. Options which are so declared may, subject to the lapsing conditions set out above, be exercised at any time on or before their expiry date and in any number.

There are no participating rights or entitlements inherent in the options and option holders will not be entitled to participate in new issues of capital offered to Shareholders during the currency of the options. However, the Company will ensure that the record date for determining entitlements to any such issue will be at least six Business Days after the issue is announced. Option holders shall be afforded the opportunity to exercise all options which they are entitled to exercise pursuant to the Plan prior to the date for determining entitlements to participate in any such issue.

If the Company makes an issue of shares to Shareholders by way of capitalisation of profits or reserves ("Bonus Issue"), each option holder holding any options which have not expired at the time of the record date for determining entitlements to the Bonus Issue shall be entitled to participate in the Bonus Issue by exercising their options before the record date determining entitlements under the Bonus Issue. They will then be issued the shares under the Bonus Issue in addition to the Shares which he or she is otherwise entitled to have issued to him or her upon such exercise.

The Bonus Shares will be paid by the Company out of profits or reserves (as the case may be) in the same manner as was applied in relation to the Bonus Issue and upon issue rank pari passu in all respects with the other Shares issued upon exercise of the options. In the event of any reconstruction (including a consolidation, subdivision, reduction or return) of the issued capital of the Company prior to the expiry of any options, the number of options to which each option holder is entitled or the exercise price of his or her options or both or any other terms will be reconstructed in a manner determined by the Board which complies with the provisions of the Listing Rules.

Under current taxation laws any taxation liability in relation to the options, or the Shares issued on exercise of the options, will fall on the participants. The Company will not be liable to fringe benefits tax in relation to options or Shares issued under the Plan.

Although Directors are eligible to be offered options under the Plan, this first requires specific Shareholder approval due to the requirements of the ASX Listing Rules and the Corporations Act 2001.

Details of Employee Incentive Plan

The Group continued the Employee Incentive Plan which was first adopted in February 2011, which allowed the Board to invite employees to apply for incentives. The incentives may be exercised for nil consideration when certain vesting conditions occur, at which point one share will be issued for each incentive exercised.

Of the 3,750,000 incentives on issue at 30 June 2013, 1,250,000 were forfeited on cessation of employment during the year. There were no incentives exercised during the year.

During the year 1,400,000 incentives were issued, these incentives have both continuous employment and earning per share vesting conditions attached.

Mr Mark Pugsley was a recipient of 500,000 incentives during the year.

Directors' Meetings

The number of meetings of directors (including meetings of committees of directors) held during the year and the number of meetings attended by each director was as follows:

	Directors' Meetings	Audit Committee	Remuneration Committee
Number of meetings including meetings held via circular resolution:	14	2	1
Number of meetings attended:			
Mr Mel Ashton	14	2	1
Mr Jeff Brill	12	2*	1*
Mr Damir Panzich	12	2	1
Mr Chris Ryan	14	2	1

^{*} indicates attendance by invitation

Proceedings on behalf of the Group

No person has applied to the Court under section 237 of the Corporations Act 2001 for leave to bring proceedings on behalf of the Group, or to intervene in any proceedings to which the Group is a party for the purpose of taking responsibility on behalf of the Group for all or part of those proceedings.

Auditor Independence and Non-Audit Services

Section 307C of the Corporations Act 2001 requires our auditors, HLB Mann Judd, to provide the directors of the Company with an Independence Declaration in relation to the audit of the annual report. This Independence Declaration is set out on page 23 and forms part of this directors' report for the year ended 30 June 2014.

Non-Audit Services

No non-audit services were provided by the auditor or any entity associated with the auditor during the year.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the directors.

Mr Mel Ashton

Non-Executive Chairman Perth, Western Australia 28 August 2014

M. Ashton

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

Resource Development Group Limited has made it a priority to adopt systems of control and accountability as the basis for the administration of corporate governance. These policies and procedures are summarised in this statement. Commensurate with the spirit of the ASX Corporate Governance Council's Corporate Governance Principles and Recommendations ("**Principles & Recommendations**"), the Company has followed each recommendation where the Board has considered the recommendation to be an appropriate benchmark for its corporate governance practices. Where the Company's corporate governance practices follow a recommendation, the Board has made appropriate statements reporting on the adoption of the recommendation. Where, after due consideration, the Company's corporate governance practices depart from a recommendation, the Board has offered full disclosure and reason for the adoption of its own practice, in compliance with the "if not, why not" regime.

Disclosure of Corporate Governance Practices

Summary Statement

	ASX P & R ¹	If not, why not ²		ASX P & R ¹	If not, why not ²
Recommendation 1.1	✓		Recommendation 4.3	✓	
Recommendation 1.2	✓		Recommendation 4.4 ³	n/a	n/a
Recommendation 1.3 ³	n/a		Recommendation 5.1	✓	
Recommendation 2.1	-	✓	Recommendation 5.2 ³	n/a	n/a
Recommendation 2.2	✓		Recommendation 6.1	✓	
Recommendation 2.3	✓		Recommendation 6.2 ³	n/a	n/a
Recommendation 2.4	✓		Recommendation 7.1	✓	
Recommendation 2.5	✓		Recommendation 7.2	✓	
Recommendation 2.6 ³	✓		Recommendation 7.3	✓	
Recommendation 3.1	✓		Recommendation 7.4 ³	n/a	n/a
Recommendation 3.2	✓		Recommendation 8.1	✓	
Recommendation 3.3	✓		Recommendation 8.2	-	✓
Recommendation 3.4	✓		Recommendation 8.3	✓	
Recommendation 3.5 ³	n/a	n/a	Recommendation 8.4 ³	n/a	n/a
Recommendation 4.1	✓				
Recommendation 4.2	✓				

¹ Indicates where the Company has followed the Principles & Recommendations.

² Indicates where the Company has provided "if not, why not" disclosure.

³ Indicates an information based recommendation. Information based recommendations are not adopted or reported against using "if not, why not" disclosure – information required is either provided or it is not.

Website Disclosures

Further information about the Company's charters, policies and procedures may be found at the Company's website at www.resdevgroup.com.au, under the section marked Corporate Governance. A list of the charters, policies and procedures which are referred to in this Corporate Governance Statement, together with the Recommendations to which they relate, are set out below.

Charters	Recommendation(s)
Board	1.3
Audit Committee	4.4
Nomination Committee	2.6
Remuneration Committee	8.3
Policies and Procedures	
Selection and Appointment of New Directors	2.6
Performance Evaluation of the Board, Board Committees and Individual Directors	1.2, 2.5
Diversity Policy (summary)	3.2, 3.3, 3.4
Code of Conduct	3.1, 3.3
Compliance Procedures for ASX Listing Rule Disclosure Requirements (summary)	5.1, 5.2
Selection, Appointment and Rotation of External Auditor	4.4
Shareholder Communication Strategy	6.1, 6.2
Risk Management Policy (summary)	7.1, 7.4

Disclosure – Principles & Recommendations

The Company reports below on how it has followed (or otherwise departed from) each of the Principles and Recommendations during the 2013/2014 financial year ("**Reporting Period**").

Principle 1 – Lay solid foundations for management and oversight

Recommendation 1.1: Companies should establish the functions reserved to the Board and those delegated to senior executives and disclose those functions.

Disclosure:

The Group has established the functions reserved to the Board and has set out these functions in its Board Charter. The Board is collectively responsible for promoting the success of the Group through its key functions of overseeing the management of the Company, providing overall corporate governance of the Company, monitoring the financial performance of the Company, engaging appropriate management commensurate with the Company's structure and objectives, involvement in the development of corporate strategy and performance objectives and reviewing, ratifying and monitoring systems of risk management and internal control, codes of conduct and legal compliance.

The Company has established the functions delegated to senior executives and has set out these functions in its Board Charter. Senior executives are responsible for supporting the Chief Executive Officer and assisting the Chief Executive Officer in implementing the running of the general operations and financial business of the Company, in accordance with the delegated authority of the Board.

Senior executives are responsible for reporting all matters which fall within the Company's materiality thresholds at first instance to the Chief Executive Officer or, if the matter concerns the Chief Executive Officer, then directly to the Chair or the lead independent director, as appropriate.

Recommendation 1.2: Companies should disclose the process for evaluating the performance of senior executives.

Disclosure:

The Managing Director is responsible for evaluating the senior executives by holding formal and informal discussions with the senior executives on an ongoing basis, as required. The Chair reviews and evaluates the Managing Director's performance.

Recommendation 1.3: Companies should provide the information indicated in the Guide to reporting on Principle 1.

Disclosure:

During the Reporting Period a review of senior executives occurred with the Managing Director reporting to the board via informal evaluations.

Principle 2 – Structure the board to add value

Recommendation 2.1: A majority of the Board should be independent directors. As at 30 June 2014 the following directors were appointed to the Board of the Group:

Name	Position	Independent
Mr Mel Ashton	Non-executive Director	Yes
Mr Jeff Brill	Managing Director	No
Mr Damir Panzich	Executive Director	No
Mr Chris Ryan	Non-executive Director	Yes

An independent director is defined as a non-executive director and;

- Is not a substantial shareholder of the Company or an officer of or directly or indirectly associated with a substantial shareholder of the Company;
- Within the last three years has not been employed in an executive capacity by the Company, or been a director
 after ceasing to hold any such employment;
- Within the past three years has not been a principal of a material professional advisor or a material consultant to the Company or an employee associated with a such a material service provider or advisor; and,
- Does not have a material contractual relationship with the Company other than as a director of the Company.

Disclosure:

The Board comprises four directors, two of which are independent, namely Mel Ashton and Chris Ryan. The remaining directors are not independent because Jeff Brill and Damir Panzich are employed in an executive capacity. The Board considers that the merits of appointing an additional director in order to achieve majority independent status are outweighed by the Board's wish to maintain a relatively small board of four directors, which the Board believes is adequate having regard to the operations of the Company.

Recommendation 2.2: The Chair should be an independent director.

Disclosure:

The independent Chair of the Board is Mr Mel Ashton.

Recommendation 2.3: The roles of the Chair and Chief Executive Officer (or equivalent) should not be exercised by the same individual.

Disclosure:

During the Reporting Period, Mr Jeff Brill was Managing Director and Mr Mel Ashton was Chairman.

Recommendation 2.4: The Board should establish a Nomination Committee.

Disclosure:

The Nomination Committee consists of three members including two independent directors, being Mr Mel Ashton as Chairman, along with Mr Chris Ryan and Mr Damir Panzich. The Committee has a charter setting out the criteria and responsibilities for the selection of new directors.

Recommendation 2.5: Companies should disclose the process for evaluating the performance of the Board, its committees and individual directors.

Disclosure:

The Chair evaluates the Board, individual directors, any applicable committees and the Managing Director by holding informal discussions with these parties on an ongoing basis, as required. During the year a formal feedback process was conducted. Each new director is required to complete an induction process.

Recommendation 2.6: Companies should provide the information indicated in the *Guide to reporting on Principle 2*.

Disclosure:

Skills, Experience, Expertise and term of office of each Director

A profile of each director containing their skills, experience, expertise and term of office is set out in the Directors' Report.

Identification of Independent Directors

The independent directors of the Company are Mr Mel Ashton and Mr Chris Ryan. These directors are independent as they are non-executive directors who are not members of management and who are free of any business or other relationship that could materially interfere with, or could reasonably be perceived to materially interfere with, the independent exercise of their judgment.

Independence is measured having regard to the relationships listed in Box 2.1 of the Principles & Recommendations and the Group's materiality thresholds. The materiality thresholds are set out below.

Group's Materiality Thresholds

The Board has agreed on the following guidelines for assessing the materiality of matters, as set out in the Company's Board Charter:

- Consolidated Statement of Financial Position items are material if they have a value of more than 10% of net assets.
- Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income items are material if they will have an impact on the current year operating result of 10% or more.
- Items are also material if they impact on the reputation of the Company, involve a breach of legislation, are outside the ordinary course of business, they could affect the Company's rights to its assets, if accumulated they would trigger the quantitative tests, involve a contingent liability that would have a probable effect of 10% or more on balance sheet or profit and loss items, or they will have an effect on operations which is likely to result in an increase or decrease in net income or dividend distribution of more than 10%.

Contracts will be considered material if they are outside the ordinary course of business, contain exceptionally onerous provisions in the opinion of the Board, impact on income or distribution in excess of the quantitative tests, there is a likelihood that either party will default, and the default may trigger any of the quantitative tests, are essential to the activities of the Company and cannot be replaced, or cannot be replaced without an increase in cost of such a quantum, triggering any of the quantitative tests, contain or trigger change of control provisions, they are between or for the benefit of related parties, or otherwise trigger the quantitative tests.

Statement concerning availability of Independent Professional Advice

If a director considers it necessary to obtain independent professional advice to properly discharge the responsibility of their office as a director then, provided the director first obtains approval for incurring such expense from the Chair, the Company will pay the reasonable expenses associated with obtaining such advice.

Nomination Matters

The Nomination Committee did not meet during the Reporting Period.

Principle 3 - Promote ethical and responsible decision-making

Recommendation 3.1: Companies should establish a Code of Conduct and disclose the code or a summary of the code as to the practices necessary to maintain confidence in the Company's integrity, the practices necessary to take into account their legal obligations and the reasonable expectations of their stakeholders and the responsibility and accountability of individuals for reporting and investigating reports of unethical practices.

Disclosure:

The Company has established a Code of Conduct as to the practices necessary to maintain confidence in the Company's integrity, practices necessary to take into account their legal obligations and the expectations of their stakeholders and responsibility and accountability of individuals for reporting and investigating reports of unethical practices.

Recommendation 3.2: Companies should establish a policy concerning diversity and disclose the policy or a summary of that policy. The policy should include requirements for the board to establish measurable objectives for achieving gender diversity for the Board to assess annually both the objectives and progress in achieving them.

Disclosure:

The Company has established a diversity policy, which encourages and fosters an environment where individual differences of employees are recognised. The Company's policy recognises the need for women to be employed in the business and actively sets targets for the number of women employed in different roles, the comparative remuneration and seeks to establish a workforce free of harassment arising out of gender, race or age.

The Board is looking to implement KPI's as an incentive for achieving these targets.

Recommendation 3.3: Companies should disclose in each annual report the measurable objectives for achieving gender diversity set by the Board in accordance with the diversity policy and progress towards achieving them.

Disclosure:

As above.

Recommendation 3.4: Companies should disclose in each annual report the proportion of women employees in the whole organisation, women in senior executive positions and women on the Board.

Disclosure:

The Company employs the following ratio of women and men throughout the organisation and its subsidiaries:

Women - 21%

Men - 79%

There are currently no women holding senior executive roles or board positions.

Recommendation 3.5: Companies should provide the information indicated in the Guide to reporting on Principle 3.

Disclosure:

Please refer to the section above marked Website Disclosures.

The Company has also established a policy concerning trading in the Company's securities by directors, senior executives and employees.

The policy includes blackout periods where no trading in Group securities shall take place between:

- up to and including six weeks prior to the announcement of the annual results, due to be lodged by no later than 30 September of each calendar year;
- up to and including six weeks prior to the announcement of the half year results, due to be lodged by no later than 28 February of each calendar year; and
- as directed in writing by the Company's Board at any time in its sole discretion.

If directors including the Managing Director wish to trade securities outside the blackout period, they must obtain approval from the Chairman. Employees must obtain the approval of the Managing Director, and the Chairman must obtain the approval of the Board.

Principle 4 – Safeguard integrity in financial reporting

Recommendation 4.1 and Recommendation 4.2:

The Board should establish an Audit Committee and the Audit Committee should be structured so that it:

- consists only of non-executive directors;
- · consists of a majority of independent directors;
- is chaired by an independent Chair, who is not Chair of the Board; and
- has at least three members.

Disclosure:

The Board has established an Audit committee as recommended by Recommendation 4.1. Mr Chris Ryan is the chair of committee along with Mr Mel Ashton and Mr Damir Panzich. Mr Ashton and Mr Ryan are independent directors. Mr Panzich is not considered independent but is a member due to the small size of the Board.

Recommendation 4.3: The Audit Committee should have a formal charter.

Disclosure:

The Company has adopted an Audit Committee Charter which sets out the responsibilities and role of the Committee and how it reports to the Board.

Recommendation 4.4: Companies should provide the information indicated in the Guide to reporting on Principle 4.

Disclosure:

The Audit Committee met twice during the Reporting Period in accordance with the Audit Committee Charter.

Details of each of the director's qualifications are set out in the Directors' Report. The Chairman of the Board has formal qualifications in the area of accounting and insolvency, while the other members have industry knowledge and experience and consider themselves to be financially literate. Further, the Company's Audit Committee Charter provides that the Board meet with the external auditor without management present, as required.

The Company has established procedures for the selection, appointment and rotation of its external auditor. The Board is responsible for the initial appointment of the external auditor and the appointment of a new external auditor when any vacancy arises, as recommended by the Audit Committee (or its equivalent). Candidates for the position of external auditor must demonstrate complete independence from the Group through the engagement period. The Board may otherwise select an external auditor based on criteria relevant to the Company's business and circumstances. The performance of the external auditor is reviewed on an annual basis by the Audit Committee (or its equivalent) and any recommendations are made to the Board.

Principle 5 - Make timely and balanced disclosure

Recommendation 5.1: Companies should establish written policies designed to ensure compliance with ASX Listing Rule disclosure requirements and to ensure accountability at a senior executive level for that compliance and disclose those policies or a summary of those policies.

Disclosure:

The Company has established written policies designed to ensure compliance with ASX Listing Rule disclosure and accountability at a senior executive level for that compliance. The policies also include examples of disclosure requirements and who can communicate with media outlets.

Recommendation 5.2: Companies should provide the information indicated in the *Guide to reporting on Principle 5*.

Disclosure:

Please refer to the section marked Website Disclosures.

Principle 6 - Respect the rights of shareholders

Recommendation 6.1: Companies should design a communications policy for promoting effective communication with shareholders and encouraging their participation at general meetings and disclose their policy or a summary of that policy.

Disclosure:

The Company has designed a communications policy for promoting effective communication with shareholders and encouraging shareholder participation at general meetings. This includes all relevant information being disclosed on the Company's website and a regular email mail out of announcements.

Recommendation 6.2: Companies should provide the information indicated in the Guide to reporting on Principle 6.

Disclosure:

Please refer to the section marked Website Disclosures.

Principle 7 - Recognise and manage risk

Recommendation 7.1: Companies should establish policies for the oversight and management of material business risks and disclose a summary of those policies.

Disclosure:

The Board has adopted a Risk Management Policy, which sets out the Company's risk profile. Under the policy, the Board is responsible for approving the Company's policies on risk oversight and management and satisfying itself that management has developed and implemented a sound system of risk management and internal control.

Under the policy, the Board delegates day-to-day management of risk to the Managing Director, who is responsible for identifying, assessing, monitoring and managing risks. The Managing Director and the Chief Financial Officer are responsible for updating the Company's material business risks to reflect any material changes, with the approval of the Board.

In fulfilling the duties of risk management, the Managing Director may have unrestricted access to Company employees, contractors and records and may obtain independent expert advice on any matter they believe appropriate, with the prior approval of the Board.

In addition, the following risk management measures have been adopted by the Board to manage the Company's material business risks:

- the Board has established authority limits for management which, if exceeded, will require prior Board approval;
- the Board has adopted a compliance procedure for the purpose of ensuring compliance with the Group's continuous disclosure obligations; and
- the Board has adopted a corporate governance manual which contains other policies to assist the Company to establish and maintain its governance practices.

Recommendation 7.2: The Board should require management to design and implement the risk management and internal control system to manage the Company's material business risks and report to it on whether those risks are being managed effectively. The Board should disclose that management has reported to it as to the effectiveness of the Company's management of its material business risks.

Disclosure:

Management report to the Board as to the effectiveness of the Company's management of its material business risks via the Audit Committee meetings. In addition at every board meeting, the Board is provided with an update to ensure all relevant risks and systems are in place and working effectively.

Recommendation 7.3: The Board should disclose whether it has received assurance from the Managing Director (or equivalent) and the Chief Financial Officer (or equivalent) that the declaration provided in accordance with section 295A of the Corporations Act is founded on a sound system of risk management and internal control and that the system is operating effectively in all material respects in relation to financial reporting risks.

Disclosure:

The Managing Director (or equivalent) and the Chief Financial Officer (or equivalent) have provided a declaration to the Board in accordance with section 295A of the Corporations Act and have assured the Board that such declaration is founded on a sound system of risk management and internal control and that the system is operating effectively in all material respects in relation to financial risk.

Recommendation 7.4: Companies should provide the information indicated in the Guide to reporting on Principle 7.

Disclosure:

The Board has received an informal report from management under Recommendation 7.2.

The Board has received the assurance from the Managing Director (or equivalent) and the Chief Financial Officer (or equivalent) under Recommendation 7.3.

Principle 8 – Remunerate fairly and responsibly

Recommendation 8.1 and 8.2: The Board should establish a Remuneration Committee, which consists of mainly independent directors.

Disclosure:

The Company has established a Remuneration Committee. The Committee has adopted a formal charter setting out the responsibilities and considerations in determining remuneration of executives and non-executives. The Committee consists of Mr Mel Ashton as Chairman, Mr Chris Ryan and Mr Damir Panzich. Mr Ashton and Mr Ryan are independent directors, while Mr Panzich is required due to the size of the Board.

Recommendation 8.3: Companies should clearly distinguish the structure of non-executive directors' remuneration from that of executive directors and senior executives.

Disclosure:

Non-executive directors are remunerated at a fixed fee for their time and their responsibilities to various committees.

The non-executive directors are however eligible to participate in the Company's incentive plan and two of the non-executive directors, Mel Ashton and Chris Ryan, have previously received a grant of incentives under that plan which are convertible into shares in the Company. The Board considers that this is a necessary motivation to attract the highest calibre candidates to the Board at this stage in the Company's operations.

Recommendation 8.4: Companies should provide the information indicated in the Guide to reporting on Principle 8.

Disclosure:

Details of remuneration, including the Group's policy on remuneration, are contained in the "Remuneration Report" which forms of part of the Directors' Report.

The Remuneration Committee met once during the Reporting Period. The committee reviewed the Group's Remuneration Guidelines during the meeting.



AUDITOR'S INDEPENDENCE DECLARATION

As lead auditor for the audit of the consolidated financial report of Resource Development Group Limited for the year ended 30 June 2014, I declare that to the best of my knowledge and belief, there have been no contraventions of:

- a) the auditor independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 in relation to the audit; and
- b) any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the audit.

Perth, Western Australia 28 August 2014

W M Clark Partner

Melana

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2014

		Conso	Consolidated		
		2014	2013		
	Notes	\$	\$		
Continuing operations					
Revenue	2	26,706,617	102,527,837		
Interest income		123,823	160,694		
(Loss)/profit from sale of plant and equipment		(69,493)	523		
Employee benefits expense		(21,506,536)	(31,785,571)		
Depreciation	9	(432,098)	(719,918)		
Intangible amortisation	10	-	(15,725)		
Finance costs		(322,843)	(293,253)		
Impairment	10	(1,500,000)	(7,769,067)		
Share based payments	2	(218,185)	(240,580)		
Other expenses		(3,771,232)	(66,760,047)		
Share of net loss of associates and jointly controlled entities accounted for using the equity method		-	(32,034)		
Loss before income tax expense		(989,947)	(4,927,141)		
Income tax expense	3	(318,546)	(973,249)		
Loss for the year		(1,308,493)	(5,900,390)		
Other comprehensive Income					
Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss					
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations		(10,360)	320		
Other comprehensive (loss)/income for the year, net of tax		(10,360)	320		
Total comprehensive loss for the year		(1,318,853)	(5,900,070)		
Basic loss per share (cents per share)	5	(0.99)	(4.53)		
Diluted loss per share (cents per share)	5	(0.99)	(4.53)		

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 30 JUNE 2014

		Consolidated		
		2014	2013	
	Notes	\$	\$	
Current Assets	_			
Cash and cash equivalents	6	2,657,176	3,842,749	
Trade and other receivables	7	6,235,322	7,450,251	
Current tax assets	3	220,242	955,093	
Total Current Assets	_	9,112,740	12,248,093	
Non-Current Assets	_			
Investments accounted for using the equity method	18	1	1	
Property, plant and equipment	9	1,111,360	1,526,645	
Intangible assets	10	4,500,000	6,000,000	
Deferred tax assets	3	450,832	620,356	
Total Non-Current Assets	_	6,062,193	8,147,002	
Total Assets	_	15,174,933	20,395,095	
Current Liabilities				
Trade and other payables	11	2,567,589	3,109,301	
Borrowings	12	4,075,353	4,620,355	
Provisions	13	327,751	310,919	
Total Current Liabilities	_	6,970,693	8,040,575	
Non-Current Liabilities	_			
Borrowings	12	-	3,057,529	
Deferred tax liabilities	3	134,555	119,525	
Provisions	13	231,848	238,961	
Total Non-Current Liabilities	_	366,403	3,416,015	
Total Liabilities		7,337,096	11,456,590	
Net Assets	-	7,837,837	8,938,505	
Equity	-			
Issued capital	14	12,098,769	12,098,769	
Reserves	15	440,185	232,360	
(Accumulated losses)/retained earnings	15	(4,701,117)	(3,392,624)	
(Accumulated losses)/retailled earnings	10	(1,701,117)	(0,002,021)	

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2014

Consolidated	Issued capital	losses)/ retained earnings	currency transaction reserve	Share based payment reserve	Total
Consolidated	Сар наі \$	\$	\$	\$	\$
Balance as at 1 July 2012	12,074,297	2,507,766	(2,335)	18,267	14,597,995
Loss for the year	-	(5,900,390)	-	-	(5,900,390)
Exchange differences arising on translation of foreign operations	-	-	320	-	320
Total comprehensive (loss)/income for the year	-	(5,900,390)	320	-	(5,900,070)
Shares issued during the year	24,472	-	-	(24,472)	-
Recognition of share-based payments	-	-	-	240,580	240,580
Balance at 30 June 2013	12,098,769	(3,392,624)	(2,015)	234,375	8,938,505
Balance as at 1 July 2013	12,098,769	(3,392,624)	(2,015)	234,375	8,938,505
Loss for the year	-	(1,308,493)	-	-	(1,308,493)
Exchange differences arising on translation of foreign operations	-	-	(10,360)	-	(10,360)
Total comprehensive loss for the year	-	(1,308,493)	(10,360)	-	(1,318,853)
Recognition of share-based payments	-	-	-	218,185	218,185
Balance at 30 June 2014	12,098,769	(4,701,117)	(12,375)	452,560	7,837,837

(Accumulated

Foreign

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2014

		Consolidated		
	Notes	2014	2013	
		\$	\$	
Cash flows from operating activities	-			
Receipts from customers		27,502,219	111,579,534	
Payments to suppliers and employees		(25,390,256)	(107,249,220)	
Interest received		123,823	160,694	
Finance costs		(310,604)	(171,887)	
Income tax refunded/(paid)		600,862	(2,714,524)	
Net cash provided by operating activities	6	2,526,044	1,604,597	
Cash flows from investing activities				
Purchase of property, plant and equipment		(210,286)	(459,211)	
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment		123,799	1,300	
Purchase of investments		-	(1)	
Purchase of intangibles		-	(613)	
Payments for subsidiaries, net of cash acquired	_	-	(781,520)	
Net cash used in investing activities	-	(86,487)	(1,240,045)	
Cash flows from financing activities				
Proceeds from borrowings		-	781,520	
Repayment of borrowings		(573,359)	(287,635)	
Repayment of deferred acquisition consideration		(2,927,110)	(100,000)	
Reduction in finance lease and hire purchase liabilities		(114,301)	(78,192)	
Net cash provided by financing activities	· -	(3,614,770)	315,693	
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents		(1,175,213)	680,245	
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year		3,842,749	3,162,184	
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash held		(10,360)	320	
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year	6	2,657,176	3,842,749	
	-			

NOTE 1: STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Reporting entity

Resource Development Group Limited is a company domiciled in Australia. The consolidated balances of the Company for the year ended 30 June 2014 include the Company and its subsidiaries.

(b) Adoption of new and revised standards

Changes in accounting policies on initial application of Accounting Standards

In the year ended 30 June 2014, the directors have reviewed all of the new and revised Standards and Interpretations issued by the AASB that are relevant to its operations and effective for the current annual reporting period.

It has been determined by the directors that there is no impact, material or otherwise, of the new and revised Standards and Interpretations on the Group and, therefore, no change is necessary to Group accounting policies.

The directors have also reviewed all new Standards and Interpretations that have been issued but are not yet effective for the year ended 30 June 2014. As a result of this review the directors have determined that there is no impact, material or otherwise, of the new and revised Standards and Interpretations on the Group and, therefore, no change necessary to Group accounting policies.

(c) Statement of compliance

The financial report was authorised for issue on 28 August 2014.

The financial report complies with Australian Accounting Standards, which include Australian equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards (AIFRS). Compliance with AIFRS ensures that the financial report, comprising the financial statements and notes thereto, complies with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).

(d) Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the assets and liabilities of all subsidiaries of Resource Development Group Limited ('Company' or 'parent entity') as at 30 June 2014 and the results of all subsidiaries for the year then ended. Resource Development Group Limited and its subsidiaries are referred to in this financial report as the Group or the consolidated entity.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting period as the parent entity, using consistent accounting policies.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, all intercompany balances and transactions, income and expenses and profit and losses resulting from intra-group transactions have been eliminated in full.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group and cease to be consolidated from the date on which control is transferred out of the Group. Control exists where the Company has the power to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities. The existence and effect of potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or convertible are considered when assessing when the Group controls another entity.

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method of accounting (refer note 1(l)).

Unrealised gains or transactions between the Group and its associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group's interests in the associates. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of associates have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

NOTE 1: STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(d) Basis of consolidation (continued)

When the Group ceases to have control, joint control or significant influence, any retained interest in the entity is remeasured to its fair value with the change in carrying amount recognised in profit or loss. The fair value is the initial carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently accounting for the retained interest as an associate, joint controlled entity or financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income in respect of that entity are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities. This may mean that amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss.

(e) Critical accounting estimates and judgements

The application of accounting policies requires the use of judgements, estimates and assumptions about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if it affects only that period or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Recovery of deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for deductible temporary differences as management considers that it is probable that sufficient future tax profits will be available to utilise those temporary differences. Significant management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits.

Impairment of goodwill and intangibles with indefinite useful lives:

The Group determines whether goodwill and intangibles with indefinite useful lives are impaired at least on an annual basis. This requires an estimation of the recoverable amount of the cash generating units to which the goodwill and intangibles with indefinite useful lives are allocated.

Share-based payment transactions:

The Group measures the cost of equity-settled transactions with employees by reference to the fair value of the equity instruments at the date at which they are granted.

(f) Going concern

The financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis.

At balance date, the Group had a working capital surplus of \$2,142,047.

The Board of the Group considers that based on its assessment of operating cash flows, that it is appropriate to the Group's current circumstances, to prepare its financial statements on a going concern basis.

(g) Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker. The chief operating decision maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments, has been identified as the Board of Directors of Resource Development Group Limited.

NOTE 1: STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(h) Foreign currency translation

Both the functional and presentation currency of Resource Development Group Limited and its Australian subsidiaries is Australian dollars. Each entity in the Group determines its own functional currency and items included in the financial statements of each entity are measured using that functional currency.

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded in the functional currency by applying the exchange rates ruling at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rate of exchange ruling at the balance date.

All exchange differences in the consolidated financial report are taken to profit or loss with the exception of differences on foreign currency borrowings that provide a hedge against a net investment in a foreign entity. These are taken directly to equity until the disposal of the net investment, at which time they are recognised in profit or loss.

Tax charges and credits attributable to exchange differences on those borrowings are also recognised in equity.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rate as at the date of the initial transaction.

Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined. Translation differences on assets and liabilities carried at fair value are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss.

The functional currency of the foreign subsidiary, Engenium Projects Limited is British Pound (£).

As at the balance date the assets and liabilities of the foreign subsidiary is translated into the presentation currency of Resource Development Group Limited at the rate of exchange ruling at the balance date and its statement of comprehensive income is translated at the weighted average exchange rate for the year.

The exchange differences arising on the translation are taken directly to a separate component of equity, being recognised in the foreign currency translation reserve.

On disposal of a foreign entity, the deferred cumulative amount recognised in equity relating to that particular foreign operation is recognised in profit or loss.

(i) Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Amounts disclosed as revenue are net of returns, trade allowances, rebates and amounts collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue can be reliably measured. The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognised:

(i) Rendering of services

Revenue from the rendering of services is recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the contract.

(ii) Interest income

Interest revenue is recognised on a time proportionate basis that takes into account the effective yield on the financial asset.

(iii) Dividends

Dividends are recognised as revenue when the right to receive payment is established. This applies even if they are paid out of pre-acquisition profits. However, the investment may need to be tested for impairment as a consequence.

NOTE 1: STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(j) Income tax

The income tax expense or benefit for the period is the tax payable on the current period's taxable income based on the applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to temporary difference and to unused tax losses.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period in the countries where the Company's subsidiaries and associates operate and generate taxable income. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted by the balance date.

Deferred income tax is provided on all temporary differences at the balance date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred income tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences except:

- when the deferred income tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or of an asset or liability
 in a transaction that is not a business combination and that, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
 accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; or
- when the taxable temporary difference is associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates or interests in joint ventures, and the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, carry-forward of unused tax assets and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences and the carry-forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

- when the deferred income tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; or
- when the deductible temporary difference is associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates or
 interests in joint ventures, in which case a deferred tax asset is only recognised to the extent that it is
 probable that the temporary difference will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be
 available against which the temporary difference can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at each balance date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred income tax asset to be utilised.

Unrecognised deferred income tax assets are reassessed at each balance date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profit will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the balance date.

Income taxes relating to items recognised directly in equity are recognised in equity and not in profit or loss.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset only if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and liabilities relate to the same taxable entity or entities within a tax consolidated group and the same taxation authority.

Tax consolidation legislation

Resource Development Group Limited and its 100% owned Australian resident subsidiaries have implemented the tax consolidation legislation. See Note 3 for further information on how the Group accounts for income tax.

NOTE 1: STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(k) Other taxes

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of GST except:

- when the GST incurred on a purchase of goods and services is not recoverable from the taxation authority, in which case the GST is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense item as applicable; and
- receivables and payables, which are stated with the amount of GST included.

The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of receivables or payables in the balance sheet.

Cash flows are included in the statement of cash flows on a gross basis and the GST component of cash flows arising from investing and financing activities, which is recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority, are classified as operating cash flows.

Commitments and contingencies are disclosed net of the amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority.

(I) Business combinations

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for all business combinations, including business combinations involving entities or business under common control, regardless of whether equity instruments or other assets are acquired. The consideration transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary comprises the fair value of the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred and the equity interests issued by the Group. The consideration transferred also includes the fair value of any contingent consideration arrangement and the fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in the subsidiary. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are, with limited exceptions, measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date. On an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, the Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the acquiree either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest's proportionate share of the acquiree's net identifiable assets.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree over the fair value of the Group's share of the net identifiable assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If those amounts are less than the fair value of the net identifiable assets of the subsidiary acquired and the measurement of all amounts has been reviewed, the difference is recognised directly in profit or loss as a bargain purchase.

Where settlement of any part of cash consideration is deferred, the amounts payable in the future are discounted to their present value as at the date of exchange. The discount rate used is the entity's incremental borrowing rate, being the rate at which a similar borrowing could be obtained from an independent financier under comparable terms and conditions.

Contingent consideration is classified as either equity or a financial liability. Amounts classified as a financial liability are subsequently remeasured to fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

(m) Impairment of assets other than goodwill

The Group assesses at each balance date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any such indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Group makes an estimate of the asset's recoverable amount. An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and its value in use and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets and the asset's value in use cannot be estimated to be close to its fair value. In such cases the asset is tested for impairment as part of the cash-generating unit to which it belongs. When the carrying amount of an asset or cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset or cash-generating unit is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. Impairment losses relating to continuing operations are recognised in those expense categories consistent with the function of the impaired asset unless the asset is carried at revalued amount (in which case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease).

NOTE 1: STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(m) Impairment of assets other than goodwill (continued)

An assessment is also made at each balance date as to whether there is any indication that previously recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the asset's recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. If that is the case the carrying amount of the asset is increased to its recoverable amount. That increased amount cannot exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in profit or loss unless the asset is carried at revalued amount, in which case the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase. After such a reversal the depreciation charge is adjusted in future periods to allocate the asset's revised carrying amount, less any residual value, on a systematic basis over its remaining useful life.

(n) Goodwill

Goodwill acquired in a business combination is initially measured at cost being the excess of the cost of the business combination over the Group's interest in the net fair value of the acquiree's identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities.

Following initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.

Goodwill is reviewed for impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group's cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group are assigned to those units or groups of units.

Each unit or group of units to which the goodwill is so allocated:

- represents the lowest level within the Group at which the goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes; and
- is not larger than a segment based on either the Group's primary or the Group's secondary reporting format determined in accordance with AASB 8 Operating Segments.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units), to which the goodwill relates. When the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is less than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. When goodwill forms part of a cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) and an operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the operation when determining the gain or loss on disposal of the operation. Goodwill disposed of in this manner is measured based on the relative values of the operation disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

Impairment losses recognised for goodwill are not subsequently reversed.

(o) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash comprises cash at bank and in hand. Cash equivalents are short term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current liabilities in the statement of financial position.

For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and cash equivalents as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts.

NOTE 1: STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(p) Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are measured on initial recognition at fair value and are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method, less any allowance for impairment. Trade receivables are generally due for settlement within 30 days.

Impairment of trade receivables is continually reviewed and those that are considered to be uncollectible are written off by reducing the carrying amount directly. An allowance account is used when there is objective evidence that the Group will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the original contractual terms. Factors considered by the Group in making this determination include known significant financial difficulties of the debtor, review of financial information and significant delinquency in making contractual payments to the Group. The impairment allowance is set equal to the difference between the carrying amount of the receivable and the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the original effective interest rate. Where receivables are short-term discounting is not applied in determining the allowance.

The amount of the impairment loss is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income within other expenses. When a trade receivable for which an impairment allowance had been recognised becomes uncollectible in a subsequent period, it is written off against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against other expenses in the statement of comprehensive income.

(q) Property, plant and equipment

Plant and equipment is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses. Such cost includes the cost of replacing parts that are eligible for capitalisation when the cost of replacing the parts is incurred. Similarly, when each major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement only if it is eligible for capitalisation.

Land and buildings are measured at fair value less accumulated depreciation on buildings and less any impairment losses recognised after the date of the revaluation.

Depreciation is calculated on a reducing balance basis over the estimated useful life of the assets as follows:

Plant and equipment - over 2 to 20 years

Motor Vehicle - over 4 to 6 years

The assets' residual values, useful lives and amortisation methods are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each financial year end.

(i) Impairment

The carrying values of plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment at each balance date, with recoverable amount being estimated when events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.

The recoverable amount of plant and equipment is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.

For an asset that does not generate largely independent cash inflows, recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs, unless the asset's value in use can be estimated to approximate fair value.

An impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash-generating units exceeds its estimated recoverable amount. The asset or cash-generating unit is then written down to its recoverable amount.

For plant and equipment, impairment losses are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income in the cost of sales line item. However, because land and buildings are measured at revalued amounts, impairment losses on land and buildings are treated as a revaluation decrement.

NOTE 1: STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(q) Property, plant and equipment (continued)

(ii) Revaluations

Following initial recognition at cost, land and buildings are carried at a revalued amount which is the fair value at the date of the revaluation less any subsequent accumulated depreciation on buildings and any subsequent accumulated impairment losses.

Fair value is determined by reference to market-based evidence, which is the amount for which the assets could be exchanged between a knowledgeable willing buyer and a knowledgeable willing seller in an arm's length transaction as at the valuation date.

Any revaluation increment is credited to the asset revaluation reserve included in the equity section of the statement of financial position, except to the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease of the same asset previously recognised in profit or loss, in which case the increase is recognised in profit or loss.

Any revaluation decrease is recognised in profit or loss, except that a decrease offsetting a previous revaluation increase for the same asset is debited directly to the asset revaluation reserve to the extent of the credit balance existing in the revaluation reserve for that asset.

An annual transfer from the asset revaluation reserve to retained earnings is made for the difference between depreciation based on the revalued carrying amounts of the assets and depreciation based on the assets' original costs.

Additionally, any accumulated depreciation as at the revaluation date is eliminated against the gross carrying amounts of the assets and the net amounts are restated to the revalued amounts of the assets.

Upon disposal, any revaluation reserve relating to the particular asset being sold is transferred to retained earnings.

Independent valuations are performed with sufficient regularity to ensure that the carrying amounts do not differ materially from the assets' fair values at the balance date.

(iii) Derecognition and disposal

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no further future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal.

Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised.

(r) Trade and other payables

Trade payables and other payables are carried at amortised cost and represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Group prior to the end of the financial year that are unpaid and arise when the Group becomes obliged to make future payments in respect of the purchase of these goods and services. Trade and other payables are presented as current liabilities unless payment is not due within 12 months.

(s) Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

When the Group expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate assets but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to any provision is presented in the statement of comprehensive income net of any reimbursement.

Provisions are measured at the present value or management's best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period.

NOTE 1: STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(s) Provisions (continued)

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects the risks specific to the liability.

When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as an interest expense.

(t) Employee leave benefits

(i) Wages, salaries and annual leave

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits and annual leave expected to be settled within 12 months of the balance date are recognised in other payables in respect of employees' services up to the balance date. They are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled.

Liabilities accruing to employees in respect of wages and salaries, annual leave and long service leave not expected to be settled within 12 months of the balance date are recognised in non-current other payables in respect of employees' services up to the balance date. They are measured as the present value of the estimated future outflows to be made by the Group.

(ii) Long service leave

The liability for long service leave is recognised in the provision for employee benefits and measured as the present value of expected future payments to be made in respect of services provided by employees up to the balance date. Consideration is given to expected future wage and salary levels, experience of employee departures, and period of service. Expected future payments are discounted using market yields at the balance date on national government bonds with terms to maturity and currencies that match, as closely as possible, the estimated future cash outflows.

(u) Issued capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options for the acquisition of a new business are not included in the cost of acquisition as part of the purchase consideration.

(v) Dividends

Provision is made for the amount of any dividend declared, being appropriately authorised and no longer at the discretion of the entity, on or before the end of the reporting period but not distributed at the end of the reporting period.

(w) Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated as net profit attributable to members of the parent, adjusted to exclude any costs of servicing equity (other than dividends) and preference share dividends, divided by the weighted average number of ordinary shares, adjusted for any bonus element.

Diluted earnings per share is calculated as net profit attributable to members of the parent, adjusted for:

- costs of servicing equity (other than dividends) and preference share dividends;
- the after tax effect of dividends and interest associated with dilutive potential ordinary shares that have been recognised as expenses; and
- other non-discretionary changes in revenues or expenses during the period that would result from the
 dilution of potential ordinary shares; divided by the weighted average number of ordinary shares and
 dilutive potential ordinary shares, adjusted for any bonus element.

NOTE 1: STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(x) Parent entity financial information

The financial information for the parent entity, Resource Development Group Limited, disclosed in Note 20 has been prepared on the same basis as the consolidated financial statements, except as set out below.

(i) Investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint venture entities

Investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint venture entities are accounted for at cost in the financial statements of Resource Development Group Limited. Dividends received from associates are recognised in the parent entity's profit or loss, rather than being deducted from the carrying amount of these investments.

(ii) Share-based payments

The grant by the Company of options over its equity instruments to the employees of subsidiary undertakings in the Group is treated as a capital contribution to that subsidiary undertaking. The fair value of employee services received, measured by reference to the grant date fair value, is recognised over the vesting period as an increase to investment in subsidiary undertakings, with a corresponding credit to equity.

(y) Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Assets held under finance leases are initially recognised at their fair value or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease payments, each determined at the inception of the lease. The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the balance sheet as a finance lease obligation.

Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are charged directly against income, unless they are directly attributable to qualifying assets, in which case they are capitalised.

Finance lease assets are depreciated on a straight line basis over the estimated useful life of the asset.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight line basis over the lease term, except where another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability. The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental expense on a straight-line basis, except where another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed.

(z) Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets acquired separately are recorded at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment. Amortisation is charged on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation method is reviewed at the end of each annual reporting period, with any changes in these accounting estimates being accounted for on a prospective basis.

NOTE 1: STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(aa) Share-based payment transactions

Equity settled transactions:

The Group provides benefits to employees (including senior executives) of the Group in the form of share-based payments, whereby employees render services in exchange for shares or rights over shares (equity-settled transactions).

There is currently one plan in place to provide these benefits:

the Employee Share Option Plan (ESOP), which provides benefits to directors and senior executives.

The cost of these equity-settled transactions with employees is measured by reference to the fair value of the equity instruments at the date at which they are granted.

In valuing equity-settled transactions, no account is taken of any performance conditions, other than conditions linked to the price of the shares of Resource Development Group Limited (market conditions) if applicable.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised, together with a corresponding increase in equity, over the period in which the performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled, ending on the date on which the relevant employees become fully entitled to the award (the vesting period).

The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at each balance date until vesting date reflects (i) the extent to which the vesting period has expired and (ii) the Group's best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. No adjustment is made for the likelihood of market performance conditions being met as the effect of these conditions is included in the determination of fair value at grant date. The statement of comprehensive income charge or credit for a period represents the movement in cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and end of that period.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest, except for awards where vesting is only conditional upon a market condition.

If the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not been modified. In addition, an expense is recognised for any modification that increases the total fair value of the share-based payment arrangement, or is otherwise beneficial to the employee, as measured at the date of modification.

If an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet recognised for the award is recognised immediately. However, if a new award is substituted for the cancelled award and designated as a replacement award on the date that it is granted, the cancelled and new award are treated as if they were a modification of the original award, as described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect, if any, of outstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution in the computation of earnings per share (see Note 5).

NOTE 2: REVENUE AND EXPENSES

	Consol	idated
	2014	2013
	\$	\$
(a) Revenue		
Sales revenue		
Rendering of services	25,717,642	30,961,909
Sales of goods	988,975	71,565,928
	26,706,617	102,527,837
(b) Expenses		
Net foreign exchange gains/(losses)	-	231
Depreciation of non-current assets	(432,098)	(719,918)
Operating lease rental expense	(1,781,526)	(1,547,844)
Share based payments expense	(218,185)	(240,580)
Amortisation of intangible assets	-	(15,725)
NOTE 3: INCOME TAX		
	Consol	idated
	2014	2013
	\$	\$
Income tax recognised in profit or loss		
The major components of tax expense are:		
Current tax expense	159,766	1,013,316
Deferred tax (income) relating to the origination and reversal of temporary differences	184,554	712,644
Under/(over) provision of income tax in respect to prior years	10,564	(752,711)
Research and development tax incentive rebate	(36,338)	-
Total tax expense	318,546	973,249

NOTE 3: INCOME TAX (continued)

	Consoli	dated
	2014	2013
	\$	\$
The prima facie income tax (benefit)/expense on pre-tax accounting (loss)/profit from operations reconciles to the income tax expense in the financial statements as follows:		
Accounting loss before income tax	(989,947)	(4,927,141)
Income tax (benefit)/expense calculated at 30%	(296,984)	(1,478,142)
Add:		
Tax effect of:		
Allocable cost amount adjustments on tax consolidation (i)	-	221,197
Entertainment	18,021	40,928
Excess foreign income tax paid	-	1,748
Impairment of goodwill	450,000	2,330,720
Other non-deductable expenses	16,013	19,371
Capital losses not recognised	91,814	-
Share based payments	65,456	72,174
Under-provision of income tax in respect of prior years	10,564	214
Less:		
Tax effect of:		
Difference in overseas tax rates	-	(12,342)
Foreign exchange gain – accounting	-	(2,114)
Over-provision of income tax in respect of prior years	-	(39,984)
Research and development tax incentive rebate	(36,338)	(180,521)
Income tax expense reported in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income	318,546	973,249

⁽i) Resource Development Group Ltd and its Australian 100% controlled subsidiaries formed a tax consolidated group effective from 1 July 2011, in accordance with the consolidation regime. As a result, the tax cost base of depreciating assets was reduced, resulting in additional income tax expense of \$221,197 being recognised in the year ended 30 June 2013.

The tax rate used in the above reconciliation is the corporate tax rate of 30% payable by Australian corporate entities on taxable profits under Australian tax law. There has been no change in this tax rate since the previous reporting period.

NOTE 3: INCOME TAX (continued)

Current tax assets comprise 220,242 955,093 Current tax liabilities comprise: 220,242 955,093 Current tax liabilities comprise: *** *** Income tax payable 0 0 0 Deferred tax assets comprise: *** *** 0		Consolidated	
Current tax assets comprise 220,242 955,093 220,242 955,093 220,242 955,093 Current tax liabilities comprise: Income tax payable - - - Deferred tax assets comprise: - - - Provisions – employee benefits 262,786 314,732 -		2014	2013
Income tax refundable 220,242 955,093 Current tax liabilities comprise: Section of tax payable 1 2 2 2 2 2 2 3 1 2		\$	\$
Current tax liabilities comprise: 220,242 955,093 Income tax payable - - - Provisions - employee benefits 262,786 314,732 Provisions - other 29,002 70,486 Accrued expenses 96,503 42,602 Shares in controlled entities - 23,845 Foreign exchange translations - 2,018 Allowance for doubtful debts - 87,508 Blackhole expenditure 62,541 79,165 450,832 620,356 Deferred tax liabilities comprise: 8,033 14,456 Provision for FBT – overpaid - 6 Provision for FBT – overpaid - 6 Depreciable property, plant and equipment 126,522 105,063	Current tax assets comprise		
Current tax liabilities comprise: Income tax payable 1 2 3 4 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 3 14,732 3 4 2 2 2 3 4 2 2 2 3 4 2 2 3 4 2 2 3 4 2 2 3 4 2 2 3 4 2 2 3 4 2 2 3 4 2 2 3 4 2 2 3 4 2 2 3 4 2 2 3 3 3 3	Income tax refundable	220,242	955,093
Deferred tax assets comprise: Provisions – employee benefits 262,786 314,732 Provisions – other 29,002 70,486 Accrued expenses 96,503 42,602 Shares in controlled entities 23,845 Foreign exchange translations 2,018 Allowance for doubtful debts 2,018 450,832 620,356 Atomic for doubtful debts 2,018 450,832 620,356 Atomic for doubtful debts 2,018 Allowance for doubtful debts 2,018 450,832 620,356 Atomic for doubtful debts 2,018 Allowance for doubtful debts 2,018 Atomic for doubtful debts 2,018 Atomic for doubtful debts 2,018 Atomic for doubtful debts 2,018 450,832 620,356 Atomic for doubtful debts 2,018 Atomic for doubtful debts 4,018 Atomic for doubtful d		220,242	955,093
Deferred tax assets comprise: Provisions – employee benefits 262,786 314,732 Provisions – other 29,002 70,486 Accrued expenses 96,503 42,602 Shares in controlled entities 23,845 Foreign exchange translations 2,018 Allowance for doubtful debts 2,018 450,832 620,356 Atomic for doubtful debts 2,018 450,832 620,356 Atomic for doubtful debts 2,018 Allowance for doubtful debts 2,018 450,832 620,356 Atomic for doubtful debts 2,018 Allowance for doubtful debts 2,018 Atomic for doubtful debts 2,018 Atomic for doubtful debts 2,018 Atomic for doubtful debts 2,018 450,832 620,356 Atomic for doubtful debts 2,018 Atomic for doubtful debts 4,018 Atomic for doubtful d	Current tax liabilities comprise:		
Deferred tax assets comprise: Provisions – employee benefits 262,786 314,732 Provisions - other 29,002 70,486 Accrued expenses 96,503 42,602 Shares in controlled entities - 23,845 Foreign exchange translations - 2,018 Allowance for doubtful debts - 87,508 Blackhole expenditure 62,541 79,165 450,832 620,356 Deferred tax liabilities comprise: Prepayments 8,033 14,456 Provision for FBT – overpaid - 6 Depreciable property, plant and equipment 126,522 105,063	•	-	_
Provisions – employee benefits 262,786 314,732 Provisions – other 29,002 70,486 Accrued expenses 96,503 42,602 Shares in controlled entities - 23,845 Foreign exchange translations - 2,018 Allowance for doubtful debts - 87,508 Blackhole expenditure 62,541 79,165 450,832 620,356 Deferred tax liabilities comprise: Prepayments 8,033 14,456 Provision for FBT – overpaid - 6 Depreciable property, plant and equipment 126,522 105,063		-	-
Provisions - other 29,002 70,486 Accrued expenses 96,503 42,602 Shares in controlled entities - 23,845 Foreign exchange translations - 2,018 Allowance for doubtful debts - 87,508 Blackhole expenditure 62,541 79,165 450,832 620,356 Deferred tax liabilities comprise: Prepayments 8,033 14,456 Provision for FBT – overpaid - 6 Depreciable property, plant and equipment 126,522 105,063	Deferred tax assets comprise:		
Accrued expenses 96,503 42,602 Shares in controlled entities - 23,845 Foreign exchange translations - 2,018 Allowance for doubtful debts - 87,508 Blackhole expenditure 62,541 79,165 450,832 620,356 Deferred tax liabilities comprise: Prepayments 8,033 14,456 Provision for FBT – overpaid - 6 Depreciable property, plant and equipment 126,522 105,063	Provisions – employee benefits	262,786	314,732
Shares in controlled entities - 23,845 Foreign exchange translations - 2,018 Allowance for doubtful debts - 87,508 Blackhole expenditure 62,541 79,165 450,832 620,356 Deferred tax liabilities comprise: Prepayments 8,033 14,456 Provision for FBT – overpaid - 6 Depreciable property, plant and equipment 126,522 105,063	Provisions - other	29,002	70,486
Foreign exchange translations - 2,018 Allowance for doubtful debts - 87,508 Blackhole expenditure 62,541 79,165 450,832 620,356 Deferred tax liabilities comprise: Prepayments 8,033 14,456 Provision for FBT – overpaid - 6 Depreciable property, plant and equipment 126,522 105,063	Accrued expenses	96,503	42,602
Allowance for doubtful debts - 87,508 Blackhole expenditure 62,541 79,165 450,832 620,356 Deferred tax liabilities comprise: Prepayments 8,033 14,456 Provision for FBT – overpaid - 6 Depreciable property, plant and equipment 126,522 105,063	Shares in controlled entities	-	23,845
Blackhole expenditure 62,541 79,165 Deferred tax liabilities comprise: Prepayments 8,033 14,456 Provision for FBT – overpaid - 6 Depreciable property, plant and equipment 126,522 105,063	Foreign exchange translations	-	2,018
Deferred tax liabilities comprise: 450,832 620,356 Prepayments 8,033 14,456 Provision for FBT – overpaid - 6 Depreciable property, plant and equipment 126,522 105,063	Allowance for doubtful debts	-	87,508
Deferred tax liabilities comprise:Prepayments8,03314,456Provision for FBT – overpaid-6Depreciable property, plant and equipment126,522105,063	Blackhole expenditure	62,541	79,165
Prepayments8,03314,456Provision for FBT – overpaid-6Depreciable property, plant and equipment126,522105,063		450,832	620,356
Provision for FBT – overpaid - 6 Depreciable property, plant and equipment 126,522 105,063	Deferred tax liabilities comprise:		
Depreciable property, plant and equipment 126,522 105,063	Prepayments	8,033	14,456
	Provision for FBT – overpaid	-	6
134,555 119,525	Depreciable property, plant and equipment	126,522	105,063
		134,555	119,525

NOTE 3: INCOME TAX (continued)

The Group has nil tax losses arising in Australia (2013: \$Nil) that are available indefinitely for offset against future taxable profits of the companies in which the losses arose.

The Group has capital losses of \$315,898 arising in Australia (2013: \$9,850) that are available indefinitely for offset against future capital gains of the tax consolidated group. No deferred tax asset has been recognised for capital losses as it is not probable that capital gains will be available against which the carried forward capital losses can be utilised.

Reconciliation of deferred tax assets/(liabilities):

	Consolidated				
2014	Opening balance \$	Charged to income \$	Charged to equity	Acquisitions/ disposals \$	Closing balance \$
Temporary differences	133,167	17,844	-	-	151,011
Property, plant and equipment	(105,062)	(21,460)	-	-	(126,522)
Provisions	472,726	(180,938)	-	-	291,788
	500,831	(184,554)	-	-	316,277

			Consolidated		
2013	Opening balance \$	Charged to income \$	Charged to equity	Acquisitions/ disposals \$	Closing balance \$
Temporary differences	302,071	(168,904)	-	-	133,167
Property, plant and equipment	3,894	(108,956)	-	-	(105,062)
Provisions	334,959	137,767	-	-	472,726
Tax losses carried forward	572,553	(572,553)	-	-	-
•	1,213,477	(712,646)	-	-	500,831

Tax consolidation

Effective 1 July 2011, for the purposes of income taxation, Resource Development Group Limited and its 100% owned Australian resident subsidiaries formed a tax consolidated group. The members of the Group have entered into a tax sharing arrangement in order to allocate income tax expense to the wholly-owned subsidiaries on a pro-rata basis. The agreement provides for the allocation of income tax liabilities between the entities should the head entity default on its tax payment obligations. The head entity of the tax consolidated group is Resource Development Group Limited. No amounts have been recognised in the financial statements in respect of this agreement on the basis that the possibility of default is remote.

Tax effect accounting by members of the tax consolidated group

The head entity and the controlled entities in the tax consolidated group continue to account for their own current and deferred tax amounts. The Group has applied the group allocation approach in determining the appropriate amount of current taxes and deferred taxes to allocate to members of the tax consolidated group. The current and deferred tax amounts are measured in a systematic manner that is consistent with the broad principles in AASB 112 *Income Taxes*.

NOTE 3: INCOME TAX (continued)

In addition to its own current and deferred tax amounts, the head entity also recognises current tax liabilities (or assets) and the deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses and unused tax credits assumed from controlled entities in the tax consolidated group.

Nature of the tax funding agreement

Members of the Group have entered into a tax funding agreement. Under the funding agreement the allocation of tax within the Group is based on a group allocation. The tax funding agreement requires payments to/from the head entity to be recognised via an inter-entity receivable (payable) which is at call.

The allocation of taxes under the tax funding agreement is recognised as an increase or decrease in the subsidiaries' intercompany accounts with the tax consolidated group head company, Resource Development Group Limited. The amounts receivable or payable under the tax funding agreement are due upon receipt of the funding advice from the head entity, which is issued as soon as practical after the end of each financial year

Resource Development Group Ltd has recognised a tax consolidation contribution from a wholly-owned tax group of \$959,541 (2013:\$1,708,106). The contribution arose predominately as the result of tax losses generated by the head company and claimed in the consolidated income tax return and taxable income generated by subsidiaries. The contribution was recognised as credited to income tax expense.

NOTE 4: SEGMENT REPORTING

AASB 8 Operating Segments requires operating segments to be identified on the basis of internal reports about components of the Group that are reviewed by the chief operating decision maker in order to allocate resources to the segment and assess its performance.

The Board of Directors of Resource Development Group Limited reviews internal reports prepared as consolidated financial statements and strategic decisions of the Company are determined upon analysis of these internal reports.

The Group operates predominantly in one business segment being the provision of engineering and consulting services to mining clients in Australia. The Board of Directors is of the opinion that the statement of comprehensive income of the Group is equivalent to the operating segment identified above and as such no further disclosure is required in the notes to the consolidated financial statements in relation to business segments.

Revenue by geographical region

Revenue by geographical region attributable to external customers is disclosed below, based on the location of the external customer.

	Consoli	dated
	2014	2013
	\$	\$
Australia	26,146,518	100,992,723
Africa	214,883	1,419,686
Ecuador	345,216	115,428
Total	26,706,617	102,527,837

Major customers

The Group has a number of customers to whom it provides services where the revenue from each customer was in excess of 10% of the Group's revenue for the financial year. These customers generated 33% (2013: 7%), 24% (2013: 4%) and 0% (2013:70%) of the Group's revenue for the year.

NOTE 5: EARNINGS PER SHARE

	Consc	olidated
	2014	2013
	Cents per share	Cents per share
Basic loss per share:	(0.99)	(4.53)
Basic loss per share		
The loss and weighted average number of ordinary shares used in the calculation of basic loss per share is as follows:		
	\$	\$
Loss (refer (i))	(1,308,493)	(5,900,390)
	Number	Number
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purposes of basic loss per share	132,418,895	130,226,725
(i) The loss used in the calculation of total basic loss per share reconciles to net loss in the statement of comprehensive income as follows:	\$	\$
Net loss after tax from continuing operations	(1,308,493)	(5,900,390)
Loss used in the calculation of basic loss per share	(1,308,493)	(5,900,390)
	Cents per share	Cents per share
Diluted loss per share:	(0.99)	(4.53)

Diluted loss per share is not reflected for incentives as the result is anti-dilutive in nature.

NOTE 6: CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

	Consolidated		
	2014	2013	
	\$	\$	
Cash at bank and on hand	2,288,477	3,434,689	
Security deposits	368,699	408,060	
	2,657,176	3,842,749	

Cash at bank earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates.

Security deposits are restricted cash used as collateral to obtain bank guarantee facilities. These deposits are interest bearing and the interest is compounded and added to operating cash reserves.

(i) Reconciliation to the Statement of Cash Flows:

For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at bank and investments in money market instruments, net of outstanding bank overdrafts.

Cash and cash equivalents as shown in the statement of cash flows is reconciled to the related items in the statement of financial position as follows:

Cash and cash equivalents \$ Bank overdraft 2,657,176 3,842,749 (Ii) Reconciliation of loss for the year to net cash flows from operating activities Loss for the year (1,308,493) (5,900,390) Amortisation and impairment of intangibles 1,500,000 7,784,792 (Profit)/loss on sale or disposal of assets 69,493 (218) Foreign exchange loss - (231) Depreciation 432,098 719,918 Allowance for doubtful debts (394,512) 395,152 Equity settled share based payment 218,185 240,580 Provision for employee leave benefits (201,137) 90,271 (Increase)/decrease in operating assets: 387,522 57,115 Increase/(decrease) in operating liabilities: 1,609,441 8,472,537 Other assets 887,552 57,115 Increase/(decrease) in operating liabilities: 2,226,044 (8,516,444) Other liabilities 5,801 (1,738,485) Net cash used in operating activities 2,526,044 1,604,597		2014	2013
Bank overdraft		\$	\$
(ii) Reconciliation of loss for the year to net cash flows from operating activities Loss for the year (1,308,493) (5,900,390) Amortisation and impairment of intangibles 1,500,000 7,784,792 (Profit)/loss on sale or disposal of assets 69,493 (218) Foreign exchange loss - (231) Depreciation 432,098 719,918 Allowance for doubtful debts (394,512) 395,152 Equity settled share based payment 218,185 240,580 Provision for employee leave benefits (201,137) 90,271 (Increase)/decrease in operating assets: 387,552 57,115 Increase/(decrease) in operating liabilities: 387,552 57,115 Increase/(decrease) in operating liabilities: (292,384) (8,516,444) Other liabilities 5,801 (1,738,485)	Cash and cash equivalents	2,657,176	3,842,749
(ii) Reconciliation of loss for the year to net cash flows from operating activities Loss for the year (1,308,493) (5,900,390) Amortisation and impairment of intangibles 1,500,000 7,784,792 (Profit)/loss on sale or disposal of assets 69,493 (218) Foreign exchange loss - (231) Depreciation 432,098 719,918 Allowance for doubtful debts (394,512) 395,152 Equity settled share based payment 218,185 240,580 Provision for employee leave benefits (201,137) 90,271 (Increase)/decrease in operating assets: 1,609,441 8,472,537 Other assets 1,609,441 8,472,537 Other assets 1,609,441 8,472,537 Increase/(decrease) in operating liabilities: 77,115 Increase/(decrease) in operating liabilities: 77,115 Trade and other payables (292,384) (8,516,444) Other liabilities 5,801 (1,738,485)	Bank overdraft		-
activities Loss for the year (1,308,493) (5,900,390) Amortisation and impairment of intangibles 1,500,000 7,784,792 (Profit)/loss on sale or disposal of assets 69,493 (218) Foreign exchange loss - (231) Depreciation 432,098 719,918 Allowance for doubtful debts (394,512) 395,152 Equity settled share based payment 218,185 240,580 Provision for employee leave benefits (201,137) 90,271 (Increase)/decrease in operating assets: 1,609,441 8,472,537 Other assets 887,552 57,115 Increase/(decrease) in operating liabilities: (292,384) (8,516,444) Other liabilities 5,801 (1,738,485)		2,657,176	3,842,749
Amortisation and impairment of intangibles 1,500,000 7,784,792 (Profit)/loss on sale or disposal of assets 69,493 (218) Foreign exchange loss - (231) Depreciation 432,098 719,918 Allowance for doubtful debts (394,512) 395,152 Equity settled share based payment 218,185 240,580 Provision for employee leave benefits (201,137) 90,271 (Increase)/decrease in operating assets: 1,609,441 8,472,537 Other assets 887,552 57,115 Increase/(decrease) in operating liabilities: Trade and other payables (292,384) (8,516,444) Other liabilities 5,801 (1,738,485)			
(Profit)/loss on sale or disposal of assets 69,493 (218) Foreign exchange loss - (231) Depreciation 432,098 719,918 Allowance for doubtful debts (394,512) 395,152 Equity settled share based payment 218,185 240,580 Provision for employee leave benefits (201,137) 90,271 (Increase)/decrease in operating assets: Trade and other receivables 1,609,441 8,472,537 Other assets 887,552 57,115 Increase/(decrease) in operating liabilities: Trade and other payables (292,384) (8,516,444) Other liabilities 5,801 (1,738,485)	Loss for the year	(1,308,493)	(5,900,390)
Foreign exchange loss - (231) Depreciation 432,098 719,918 Allowance for doubtful debts (394,512) 395,152 Equity settled share based payment 218,185 240,580 Provision for employee leave benefits (201,137) 90,271 (Increase)/decrease in operating assets: - (231) Trade and other receivables 1,609,441 8,472,537 Other assets 887,552 57,115 Increase/(decrease) in operating liabilities: - (292,384) (8,516,444) Other liabilities 5,801 (1,738,485)	Amortisation and impairment of intangibles	1,500,000	7,784,792
Depreciation 432,098 719,918 Allowance for doubtful debts (394,512) 395,152 Equity settled share based payment 218,185 240,580 Provision for employee leave benefits (201,137) 90,271 (Increase)/decrease in operating assets: Trade and other receivables 1,609,441 8,472,537 Other assets 887,552 57,115 Increase/(decrease) in operating liabilities: Trade and other payables (292,384) (8,516,444) Other liabilities 5,801 (1,738,485)	(Profit)/loss on sale or disposal of assets	69,493	(218)
Allowance for doubtful debts (394,512) 395,152 Equity settled share based payment 218,185 240,580 Provision for employee leave benefits (201,137) 90,271 (Increase)/decrease in operating assets: Trade and other receivables 1,609,441 8,472,537 Other assets 887,552 57,115 Increase/(decrease) in operating liabilities: (292,384) (8,516,444) Other liabilities 5,801 (1,738,485)	Foreign exchange loss	-	(231)
Equity settled share based payment 218,185 240,580 Provision for employee leave benefits (201,137) 90,271 (Increase)/decrease in operating assets: Trade and other receivables 1,609,441 8,472,537 Other assets 887,552 57,115 Increase/(decrease) in operating liabilities: (292,384) (8,516,444) Other liabilities 5,801 (1,738,485)	Depreciation	432,098	719,918
Provision for employee leave benefits (201,137) 90,271 (Increase)/decrease in operating assets:	Allowance for doubtful debts	(394,512)	395,152
(Increase)/decrease in operating assets: Trade and other receivables Other assets 1,609,441 8,472,537 887,552 57,115 Increase/(decrease) in operating liabilities: Trade and other payables (292,384) (8,516,444) Other liabilities 5,801 (1,738,485)	Equity settled share based payment	218,185	240,580
Trade and other receivables 1,609,441 8,472,537 Other assets 887,552 57,115 Increase/(decrease) in operating liabilities: (292,384) (8,516,444) Other liabilities 5,801 (1,738,485)	Provision for employee leave benefits	(201,137)	90,271
Other assets 887,552 57,115 Increase/(decrease) in operating liabilities: Trade and other payables (292,384) (8,516,444) Other liabilities 5,801 (1,738,485)	(Increase)/decrease in operating assets:		
Increase/(decrease) in operating liabilities: Trade and other payables (292,384) (8,516,444) Other liabilities 5,801 (1,738,485)	Trade and other receivables	1,609,441	8,472,537
Trade and other payables (292,384) (8,516,444) Other liabilities 5,801 (1,738,485)	Other assets	887,552	57,115
Other liabilities 5,801 (1,738,485)	Increase/(decrease) in operating liabilities:		
	Trade and other payables	(292,384)	(8,516,444)
Net cash used in operating activities 2,526,044 1,604,597	Other liabilities	5,801	(1,738,485)
	Net cash used in operating activities	2,526,044	1,604,597

NOTE 7: CURRENT TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Consolidated	
2014	2013
\$	\$
4,741,273	6,886,700
(640)	(112,489)
4,740,633	6,774,211
1,494,249	657,907
440	15,733
-	2,399
-	282,664
	(282,663)
6,235,322	7,450,251
	2014 \$ 4,741,273 (640) 4,740,633 1,494,249 440

⁽i) The average credit period on sales of goods and rendering of services is 46 days. Interest is not charged. An allowance has been made for estimated irrecoverable trade receivable amounts and related party loans arising from the past sale of goods and rendering of services, determined by reference to past default experience.

The balances of receivables that remain within initial trade terms (as detailed in the table) are considered to be of high credit quality.

	Consolidated	
	2014	2013
Aging of past due but not impaired	\$	\$
< 30 days	2,565,202	5,615,805
30 – 60 days	1,926,839	952,812
60 – 90 days	209,452	147,743
90+ days	39,140	57,851
Total	4,740,633	6,774,211
Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts	Consoli	idated
	2014	2013
	\$	\$
Balance at the beginning of the year	395,152	-
Impairment losses recognised on receivables	24,025	395,152
Amounts recovered during the year	(72,862)	-
Impairment losses reversed	(345,675)	-
Balance at the end of the year	640	395,152

⁽ii) For details of the terms and conditions of related party receivables refer to Note 19.

NOTE 9: PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

		Consolidated	
	Motor vehicles	Plant and equipment	Total
	\$	\$	\$
Year ended 30 June 2014			_
At 1 July 2013, net of accumulated depreciation and impairment	126,786	1,399,859	1,526,645
Additions	25,532	184,754	210,286
Disposals	(117,165)	(76,308)	(193,473)
Depreciation charge for the year	(14,839)	(417,259)	(432,098)
At 30 June 2014, net of accumulated depreciation and impairment	20,314	1,091,046	1,111,360
At 1 July 2013			
Cost or fair value	251,608	3,419,198	3,670,806
Accumulated depreciation and impairment	(124,822)	(2,019,339)	(2,144,161)
Net carrying amount	126,786	1,399,859	1,526,645
At 30 June 2014			
Cost or fair value	25,533	2,163,890	2,189,423
Accumulated depreciation and impairment	(5,219)	(1,072,844)	(1,078,063)
Net carrying amount	20,314	1,091,046	1,111,360

NOTE 9: PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

	Consolidated		
	Motor vehicle	Plant and equipment	Total
	\$	\$	\$
Year ended 30 June 2013			
At 1 July 2012, net of accumulated depreciation and impairment	171,659	1,572,291	1,743,950
Additions	-	459,211	459,211
Transfer	-	44,482	44,482
Disposals	(777)	(303)	(1,080)
Depreciation charge for the year	(44,096)	(675,822)	(719,918)
At 30 June 2013, net of accumulated depreciation and impairment	126,786	1,399,859	1,526,645
At 1 July 2012			
Cost or fair value	254,413	3,281,539	3,535,952
Accumulated depreciation and impairment	(82,754)	(1,709,248)	(1,792,002)
Net carrying amount	171,659	1,572,291	1,743,950
At 30 June 2013			
Cost or fair value	251,608	3,419,198	3,670,806
Accumulated depreciation and impairment	(124,822)	(2,019,339)	(2,144,161)
Net carrying amount	126,786	1,399,859	1,526,645

The useful life of the assets was estimated as follows for both 2013 and 2014

Plant and equipment 2 to 20 yearsMotor vehicles 4 to 6 years

NOTE 10: INTANGIBLE ASSETS AND GOODWILL

Consolidated			
Trademark	Borrowing costs	Goodwill	Total
\$	\$	\$	\$
890	14,222	13,769,067	13,784,179
-	613	-	613
(890)	(14,835)	-	(15,725)
-	-	(7,769,067)	(7,769,067)
-	-	6,000,000	6,000,000
-	-	(1,500,000)	(1,500,000)
-	-	4,500,000	4,500,000
890	14,835	6,000,000	6,015,725
(890)	(14,835)	-	(15,725)
-	-	6,000,000	6,000,000
-	-	4,500,000	4,500,000
	-	-	-
-	-	4,500,000	4,500,000
	\$ 890 - (890) 890	Trademark Borrowing costs \$ \$ 890 14,222 - 613 (890) (14,835) - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 890 14,835	Trademark Borrowing costs Goodwill \$ \$ \$ 890 14,222 13,769,067 - 613 - (890) (14,835) - - - (7,769,067) - - 6,000,000 - - (1,500,000) - - 4,500,000 (890) (14,835) - - - 6,000,000 - - 4,500,000 - - - - - -

Impairment

During the year ended 30 June 2014, following the completion of intangible asset impairment testing, a \$750,000 charge was taken against Intellect Systems Pty Ltd and a \$750,000 charge was taken against Ecologia Environmental Consultants Pty Ltd. These charges were a consequence of management's outlook of future earning capabilities in these difficult markets.

Goodwill Allocation

The carrying amount of goodwill at balance date relates to the following cash generating units:

	Consolidated		
	2014	2013	
	\$	\$	
Intellect Systems Pty Ltd	2,250,000	3,000,000	
Ecologia Environmental Consultants Pty Ltd	2,250,000	3,000,000	
	4,500,000	6,000,000	

NOTE 10: INTANGIBLE ASSETS AND GOODWILL (continued)

Impairment testing

Impairment testing compares the carrying value of assets to be tested to the recoverable amount of future cash flows which was determined using the value in use calculation. Assumptions for ascertaining the recoverable amount are based on management's past experience and future expectations. Cash flow projections are based on five year forecasts. Forecasts use current management estimates, based on past management experience and future expectations to determine revenue, expenses, capital expenditure and cash flows.

	Discount rate as at 30 June 2014 % (a)	Discount rate as at 30 June 2013 % (a)	Terminal value growth rate as at 30 June 2014 % (b)	Terminal value growth rate as at 30 June 2013 % (b)
Intellect Systems Pty Ltd	15	12	0	0
Ecologia Environmental Consultants Pty Ltd	15	12	0	0

a) Discount rate represents the pre-tax discount rate applied to the cash flow projections. This discount rate reflects the market determined and risk adjusted discount rate.

Reasonably possible change

The recoverable amount of goodwill relating to both Intellect Systems Pty Ltd and Ecologia Environmental Consultants Pty Ltd would be impacted by an adverse movement in earnings, discount rate or terminal growth rate.

NOTE 11: TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

	Consol	Consolidated	
	2014	2013	
Current	\$	\$	
Trade payables	2,087,691	2,418,547	
Other payables	479,898	690,754	
	2,567,589	3,109,301	

Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on 30-day terms.

b) Terminal value growth rate represents the growth rate applied to extrapolate cash flow projections beyond the five year forecast period. These growth rates are based on the competitive markets and current work in hand.

NOTE 12: BORROWINGS

		Consol	idated
		2014	2013
		\$	\$
Current			
Bank loan		2,075,353	2,648,712
Loan facility		2,000,000	-
Deferred acquisition consideration		-	1,927,110
Finance lease liabilities			44,533
		4,075,353	4,620,355
Non-current			
Loan facility		-	2,000,000
Deferred acquisition consideration		-	1,000,000
Finance lease liabilities			57,529
			3,057,529
Secured	Maturity		
Bank loan	2017	2,075,353	2,648,712
Lease liabilities	2016		102,062
Total secured borrowings		2,075,353	2,750,774
Unsecured			
Loan facility	2015	2,000,000	2,000,000
Deferred acquisition consideration			2,927,110
Total unsecured borrowings		2,000,000	4,927,110
Total borrowings		4,075,353	7,677,884

Summary of borrowing arrangements

The secured bank loan with Westpac Banking Corporation has a reducing limit, currently at \$2,117,771, with a variable interest rate of 6.7% which was used to assist in the purchase of a subsidiary. The loan is due to expire on 7 May 2017. The loan is secured by a fully interlocking guarantee and indemnity by the Group and supported by a general security agreement by the Group over all existing and future assets and undertakings.

Due to difficult market conditions and the incurring of one-off costs relating to relocation of its subsidiaries and redundancy costs in the second quarter of financial year, RDG breached a number of its financial covenants relating to its loan from Westpac Banking Corporation. The bank has been kept informed at all times of the company's situation and has agreed to forbear from seeking a remedy against the breach pending its quarterly review and subject to there being no other adverse features arising that in the sole discretion of the bank, may prejudice the Bank's position.

NOTE 12: BORROWINGS (continued)

Summary of borrowing arrangements (continued)

The Group entered an agreement with the ultimate parent entity, Lightshare Investments Pty Ltd on 28 June 2013, whereby \$2,000,000 of the deferred acquisition consideration was converted into an interest bearing loan for a minimum period of two years. Under the terms of the loan facility, interest of 7% is payable annually on 30 June 2014 and 30 June 2015. The first interest instalment was made on 30 June 2014. The facility also ensures that Lightshare Investments Pty Ltd cannot request repayment of the \$2,000,000 before 30 June 2015.

Financing facilities available

At balance date, the following financing facilities had been negotiated and were available:

	Consolidated	
	2014	2013
	\$	\$
Total facilities:		
bank loans	2,117,771	2,691,117
• other loans	2,000,000	2,000,000
	4,117,771	4,691,117
Facilities used at balance date		
bank loans	2,075,353	2,648,712
other loans	2,000,000	2,000,000
	4,075,353	4,648,712
Facilities unused at balance date		
bank loans	42,418	42,405
other loans	-	-
	42,418	42,405
Total facilities	4,117,771	4,691,117
Facilities used at balance date	4,075,353	4,648,712
Facilities unused at balance date	42,418	42,405

NOTE 13: PROVISIONS

	Employee Other benefits		Total
	\$	\$	\$
Consolidated			
At 1 July 2013	131,495	418,385	549,880
Net movements	(21,963)	31,682	9,719
At 30 June 2014	109,532	450,067	559,599

NOTE 13: PROVISIONS (continued)

	Other Employee benefits		Total
	\$	\$	\$
Current 2014	-	327,751	327,751
Non-current 2014	109,532	122,316	231,848

NOTE 14: ISSUED CAPITAL

	Consolidated		
	2014	2013	
	\$	\$	
132,418,895 Ordinary shares issued and fully paid (2013: 132,418,895)	12,098,769	12,098,769	

Ordinary shares entitle the holder to participate in dividends and the proceeds on winding up of the Company in proportion to the number of and amounts paid on the shares held.

On a show of hands every holder of ordinary shares present at a meeting in person or by proxy, is entitled to one vote, and upon a poll each share is entitled to one vote.

Ordinary shares have no par value and the Company does not have a limited amount of authorised capital.

	2014		2013	
	Number	\$	Number	\$
Movement in ordinary shares on issue				
Balance at beginning of financial year	132,418,895	12,098,769	129,971,723	12,074,297
Issued on 16 May 2013 under employee share scheme		-	2,447,172	24,472
Balance at end of financial year	132,418,895	12,098,769	132,418,895	12,098,769

Options

The Company has not issued any options.

The Group continued its Employee Incentive Plan originally set up in February 2011, allowing the Board to invite employees to apply for incentives, for nil consideration. The incentives may be exercised for nil consideration when certain vesting conditions occur, at which point one share will be issued for each incentive exercised.

During the year 1,400,000 new incentives were issued, 1,250,000 incentives were forfeited on cessation of employment and no shares were issued upon the vesting of any incentives.

NOTE 14: ISSUED CAPITAL (continued)

	Consolidated		
	2014	2013	
Movement in employee incentives	Number	Number	
Balance at beginning of financial year	3,750,000	2,660,040	
Issued during year	1,400,000	4,550,000	
Forfeited on cessation of employment	(1,250,000)	(1,012,868)	
Vested during year		(2,447,172)	
Balance at end of financial year	3,900,000	3,750,000	

NOTE 15: RETAINED EARNINGS AND RESERVES

Retained earnings

Movements in retained earnings/(accumulated losses) were as follows:

	Conso	lidated
	2014	2013
	\$	\$
Balance at beginning of financial year	(3,392,624)	2,507,766
Net loss for the year	(1,308,493)	(5,900,390)
Dividends paid or provided	-	-
Balance at end of financial year	(4,701,117)	(3,392,624)

Reserves		Consolidated	
	Share based payments reserve	Foreign currency translation reserve	Total
	\$	\$	\$
At 1 July 2013	234,375	(2,015)	232,360
Recognition of share based payments	218,185	-	218,185
Currency translation differences		(10,360)	(10,360)
At 30 June 2014	452,560	(12,375)	440,185

Nature and purpose of reserves

Foreign currency translation reserve

The foreign currency translation reserve is used to record exchange differences arising from the translation of the financial statements of foreign subsidiaries. It is also used to record the effect of hedging net investments in foreign operations.

Share based payment reserve

This reserve is used to record the value of equity benefits provided to employees and directors as part of their remuneration.

NOTE 16: FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a) Capital risk management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

The Group's overall strategy remains unchanged from 2013.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, cash and cash equivalents and equity attributable to equity holders of the parent, comprising issued capital, reserves and retained earnings/(accumulated losses).

None of the Group's entities are subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

Operating cash flows are used to maintain and expand operations, as well as to make routine expenditures such as tax, dividends and general administrative outgoings.

Gearing levels are reviewed by the Board on a regular basis in line with its target gearing ratio, the cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of capital.

		Consoli	dated
		2014	2013
		\$	\$
(b)	Categories of financial instruments		
Fina	ancial assets		
Cas	h and cash equivalents	2,657,176	3,842,749
Trac	de and other receivables	6,235,322	7,450,251
Fina	ancial liabilities		
Trac	de payables	2,087,691	2,418,547
Borr	rowings	4,075,353	7,677,884

(c) Financial risk management objectives

The Group is exposed to market risk including currency risk, fair value interest rate risk and price risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and cash flow interest rate risk.

(d) Market risk

The Group's activities expose it primarily to the financial risks of changes in foreign currency exchange rates, commodity prices and exchange rates.

There has been no change to the Group's exposure to market risks or the manner in which it manages and measures the risk from the previous period.

The Group does not have sufficient investments that would expose it to unmanageable market risks.

NOTE 16: FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(e) Foreign currency risk management

The Group undertakes certain transactions denominated in foreign currencies, hence exposures to exchange rate fluctuations arise. The Group does not have sufficient investments that would expose it to unmanageable foreign currency risks.

The carrying amounts of the Group's foreign currency denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at the balance date expressed in Australian dollars are as follows:

	Liabili	ties	As	sets
	2014	2013	2014	2013
	\$	\$	\$	\$
British Pound	1,397	15,174	2	102,769

Foreign currency sensitivity analysis

The Group is not exposed to any significant foreign currency fluctuations. The Group also mitigates its exposure to foreign currency risk by minimising excess foreign currency balances in overseas jurisdictions not required for working capital.

(f) Interest rate risk management

The Company and the Group are exposed to interest rate risk as entities in the Group borrow funds at variable interest rates. The Group's policy is to manage its exposure to movements in interest rates by fixing the interest rate on financial instruments, including bank loans, finance leases and hire purchase liabilities, wherever possible. In addition, the Group utilises a number of financial institutions to obtain the best interest rate possible and to manage its risk. The Group does not enter into interest rate hedges.

Interest rate risk sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on the exposure to interest rates for non-derivative instruments at the balance date and the stipulated change taking place at the beginning of the financial year and held constant throughout the reporting period. A 50 basis point increase or decrease is used when reporting interest rate risk internally to key management personnel and represent management's assessment of the change in interest rates.

At balance date, if interest rates had been 50 basis points lower or higher and all other variables were held constant, the Group's net profit would increase by \$10,377 (2013: \$13,244) and decrease by \$10,377 (2013: \$13,244). This is mainly attributable to the Group's exposure to interest rates on its variable rate borrowings.

(g) Credit risk management

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the Group. The Group has adopted a policy of only dealing with creditworthy counterparties and obtaining sufficient collateral where appropriate, as a means of mitigating the risk of financial loss from defaults. The Group only transacts with entities that are rated the equivalent of investment grade and above. This information is supplied by independent rating agencies where available and, if not available, the Group uses publicly available financial information and its own trading record to rate its major customers. The Group's exposure and the credit ratings of its counterparties are continuously monitored.

The Group does not have any significant credit risk exposure to any single counterparty or any group of counterparties having similar characteristics. The credit risk on liquid funds and derivative financial instruments is limited because the counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned by international credit rating agencies.

The carrying amount of financial assets recorded in the financial statements, net of any allowance for losses, represents the Group's maximum exposure to credit risk without taking account of the value of any collateral obtained.

NOTE 16: FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(h) Liquidity risk management

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the board of directors, who have built an appropriate liquidity risk management framework for the management of the Group's short, medium and long-term funding and liquidity management requirements. The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves, banking facilities and reserve borrowing facilities by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows and matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities. The Group currently utilises financing facilities in the form of bank loans and hire purchase liabilities.

The following table details the Company's and the Group's expected contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities. These have been drawn up based on undiscounted contractual maturities of the financial liabilities based on the earliest date the Group can be required to repay.

	Weighted average effective	Total	1 year or less	1 – 5 years	5+ years
	interest rate %	\$	\$	\$	\$
2014					
Non-interest bearing	-	2,087,691	2,087,691	-	-
Fixed interest rate instruments	7.0	2,000,000	2,000,000	-	-
Variable interest rate instruments	6.7	2,075,353	2,075,353	-	-
		6,163,044	6,163,044	-	-
2013					
Non-interest bearing	-	5,345,657	4,345,657	1,000,000	-
Finance lease liabilities	6.6	102,062	44,533	57,529	-
Fixed interest rate instruments	7.0	2,000,000	-	2,000,000	-
Variable interest rate instruments	6.1	2,648,712	2,648,712	-	-
		10,096,431	7,038,902	3,057,529	-

(i) Fair value of financial instruments

The following table presents the Group's assets and liabilities measured and recognised at fair value at 30 June 2014.

Consolidated	2014 Carrying amount	2014 Fair value	2013 Carrying amount	2013 Fair value
	\$	\$	\$	\$
Financial assets				
Cash and cash equivalent	2,657,176	2,657,176	3,842,749	3,842,749
Trade and other receivables	6,235,322	6,235,322	7,450,251	7,450,251
Financial liabilities				
Trade and other payables	2,087,691	2,087,691	2,418,547	2,418,547
Borrowings	4,075,353	4,075,353	7,677,884	7,677,884

NOTE 17: COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Operating lease commitments - Group as lessee

The Group has entered into commercial leases on premises and certain items of computer equipment. These leases have an average life of four years with renewal options included in the contracts. There are no restrictions placed upon the lessee by entering into these leases.

Future minimum rentals payable under non-cancellable operating leases as at 30 June are as follows:

	Consolidated		Pare	ent	
	2014 2013		2014 2013 2014	2013 2014 2013	2013
	\$	\$	\$	\$	
Within one year	1,140,483	1,443,430	-	-	
After one year but not more than five years	1,434,570	2,803,073	-	-	
More than five years	-	-	-	-	
	2,575,053	4,246,503	-	-	

Finance lease and hire purchase commitments - Group as lessee

The Group had finance leases and hire purchase contracts for various items of plant and machinery. These leases had terms of renewal but no purchase options and escalation clauses. Renewals are at the option of the specific entity that holds the lease.

Future minimum lease payments under finance leases and hire purchase contracts together with the present value of the net minimum lease payments are as follows:

	2014		20-	13	
	Minimum lease payments	Present value of lease payments	Minimum lease payments	Present value of lease payments	
Consolidated	\$	\$	\$	\$	
Within one year	-		50,971		
After one year but not more than five years	-		63,329		
Total minimum lease payments	-		114,300		
Less amounts representing finance charges		· -		(12,238)	
Present value of minimum lease payments		-	_	102,062	

Capital commitments

At 30 June 2014 the Group had no capital commitments that have not otherwise been recorded as a liability (2013: \$nil).

NOTE 18: INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE EQUITY METHOD

The Group entered into a 50% participating interest in Pulse Signalling and Electrical Pty Ltd ("Pulse"), an incorporated jointly controlled entity with Australian Railway Signalling & Electrical Pty Ltd ("ARS&E"). The joint venture is accounted for using the equity method under AASB 131 'Interests in Joint Ventures'. Pulse was established to provide turnkey rail signalling, communications and electrical services to the rail, resource and infrastructure sectors, and is incorporated in Australia.

During the year ended 30 June 2014, the joint venture parties agreed to dissolve the company. As at 30 June 2014, the total liabilities of Pulse included \$305,811 owing to Intellect Systems Pty Ltd, a subsidiary of Resource Development Group Limited ("RDG"). This debt has been fully impaired by RDG.

	Consolid	lated
	2014	2013
	\$	\$
Investments in jointly controlled entities	1	1
Summarised financial information of jointly controlled entity		
	Consolid	lated
	2014	2013
	\$	\$
Financial position		
Total assets	29,924	320,748
Total liabilities	324,747	384,814
Net liabilities	(294,823)	(64,066)
Financial performance		
Total revenue	(259,464)	678,126
Total loss for the year	(230,757)	(64,068)

Capital commitments

At 30 June 2014 Pulse Signalling and Electrical Pty Ltd had no capital commitments that have otherwise not been recorded as a liability (2013: \$nil).

NOTE 19: RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURE

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of Resource Development Group Limited and the subsidiaries listed in the following table.

	Country of	% Equity	y interest	Investm	ent (\$)
Name	incorporation	2014	2013	2014	2013
Engenium Pty Ltd	Australia	100	100	13,791,427	13,791,427
Engenium Projects Ltd	UK	100	100	2	2
Intellect Systems Pty Ltd	Australia	100	100	4,517,962	4,517,962
Pacer Corporation Pty Ltd	Australia	100	100	3,000,000	3,000,000
Ecologia Environmental Consultants Pty Ltd	Australia	100	100	6,252,159	6,252,159
Australian Quarries Pty Ltd	Australia	100	100	100	100

Resource Development Group Limited is the intermediate Australian parent entity and intermediate parent of the Group.

Lightshare Investments Pty Ltd (Lightshare) is the ultimate Australian parent entity and ultimate parent of the Group.

The following table provides the total amount of transactions that were entered into with related parties for the relevant financial year:

Consolidated		Income from related parties \$	Expenditure to related parties \$	Amounts owed by related parties \$	Amounts owed to related parties \$
Entities with significant influence over the Group:					
Lightshare Investments Pty Ltd	2014	-	140,000	-	-
	2013	68,780	-	2,399	-

Transactions with Key Management Personnel

Refer to Note 23 for details of transactions with key management personnel.

Entity with significant influence over the Group

Lightshare Investments Pty Ltd owns 57.31% of the ordinary shares in Resource Development Group Limited (2013: 57.31%).

On the 28 June 2013 an agreement was executed between Lightshare Investments Pty Ltd and Resource Development Group Limited whereby \$2,000,000 of the deferred consideration outstanding from the share sale agreement dated 22 February 2011 was converted to an interest bearing loan facility. This loan facility has a 7% interest rate attached where the Group must pay the interest in arrears in two instalments, on 30 June 2014 and 30 June 2015. The term of the loan is two years commencing 1 July 2013 and ending 30 June 2015, with repayment of the \$2,000,000 due at the end of the loan term. The first interest instalment was made on 30 June 2014.

Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties

Sales to and purchases from related parties are made in arm's length transactions both at normal market prices and on normal commercial terms.

Outstanding balances at year-end are unsecured, interest free and settlement occurs in cash.

No guarantees are provided or received for any related party receivables or payables.

An impairment assessment is undertaken each financial year by examining the financial position of the related party and the market in which the related party operates to determine whether there is objective evidence that a related party receivable is impaired. When such objective evidence exists, the Group recognises an allowance for the impairment loss.

NOTE 20: PARENT ENTITY DISCLOSURES

Financial position

Assets 574,122 427,209 Non-current assets 18,405,854 19,920,224 Total assets 18,979,976 20,347,433 Liabilities Current liabilities 7,123,339 5,399,081 Non-current liabilities 26,233 13,656 Total liabilities 7,149,572 5,412,737 Equity Equity Issued capital 25,907,972 25,907,972 Reserves 452,560 234,375 Accumulated losses (14,530,128) (11,207,651) Total equity 11,830,404 14,934,696 Financial performance Function performance Year ended 30 June 2014 \$0 June 2013 \$0 Jun		30 June 2014 \$	30 June 2013 \$
Non-current assets 18,405,854 19,920,224 Total assets 18,979,976 20,347,433 Liabilities 7,123,339 5,399,081 Non-current liabilities 26,233 13,656 Total liabilities 7,149,572 5,412,737 Equity Issued capital 25,907,972 25,907,972 Reserves 452,560 234,375 Accumulated losses (14,530,128) (11,207,651) Total equity 11,830,404 14,934,696 Financial performance Year ended 30 June 2014 \$ Year ended 30 June 2013 \$ Loss for the year (3,322,477) (9,770,383) Other comprehensive income - -	Assets		
Total assets 18,979,976 20,347,433 Liabilities 7,123,339 5,399,081 Non-current liabilities 26,233 13,656 Total liabilities 7,149,572 5,412,737 Equity Issued capital 25,907,972 25,907,972 Reserves 452,560 234,375 Accumulated losses (14,530,128) (11,207,651) Total equity 11,830,404 14,934,696 Financial performance Year ended 30 June 2014 \$ Year ended 30 June 2013 \$ Loss for the year (3,322,477) (9,770,383) Other comprehensive income - -	Current assets	574,122	427,209
Liabilities 7,123,339 5,399,081 Non-current liabilities 26,233 13,656 Total liabilities 7,149,572 5,412,737 Equity Issued capital 25,907,972 25,907,972 25,907,972 Reserves 452,560 234,375 Accumulated losses (14,530,128) (11,207,651) Total equity 11,830,404 14,934,696 Financial performance Year ended 30 June 2014 \$ Year ended 30 June 2013 \$ Loss for the year (3,322,477) (9,770,383) Other comprehensive income - -	Non-current assets	18,405,854	19,920,224
Current liabilities 7,123,339 5,399,081 Non-current liabilities 26,233 13,656 Total liabilities 7,149,572 5,412,737 Equity Issued capital 25,907,972 25,907,972 Reserves 452,560 234,375 Accumulated losses (14,530,128) (11,207,651) Total equity 11,830,404 14,934,696 Financial performance Year ended 30 June 2014 \$ 30 June 2013 \$ \$ Loss for the year (3,322,477) (9,770,383) Other comprehensive income - - -	Total assets	18,979,976	20,347,433
Non-current liabilities 26,233 13,656 Total liabilities 7,149,572 5,412,737 Equity Issued capital 25,907,972 25,907,972 25,907,972 Reserves 452,560 234,375 Accumulated losses (14,530,128) (11,207,651) Total equity 11,830,404 14,934,696 Financial performance Year ended 30 June 2014 \$ 30 June 2013 \$ \$ Loss for the year (3,322,477) (9,770,383) Other comprehensive income - -	Liabilities		
Equity 25,907,972 25,907,972 25,907,972 25,907,972 234,375 Accumulated losses (14,530,128) (11,207,651) Total equity 11,830,404 14,934,696 Financial performance Year ended 30 June 2014 \$ 30 June 2013 \$ \$ Loss for the year (3,322,477) (9,770,383) Other comprehensive income - - -	Current liabilities	7,123,339	5,399,081
Equity 25,907,972 25,907,972 25,907,972 234,375 234,375 34,204 11,207,651 11,207,651 11,830,404 14,934,696	Non-current liabilities	26,233	13,656
Issued capital 25,907,972 25,907,972 Reserves 452,560 234,375 Accumulated losses (14,530,128) (11,207,651) Total equity 11,830,404 14,934,696 Financial performance Year ended 30 June 2014 \$ Year ended 30 June 2013 \$ Year ended 30 June 2013 \$ Loss for the year (3,322,477) (9,770,383) Other comprehensive income - -	Total liabilities	7,149,572	5,412,737
Reserves 452,560 234,375 Accumulated losses (14,530,128) (11,207,651) Total equity 11,830,404 14,934,696 Financial performance Year ended 30 June 2014 \$ 30 June 2013 \$ \$ Loss for the year (3,322,477) (9,770,383) Other comprehensive income - -	Equity		
Accumulated losses (14,530,128) (11,207,651) Total equity 11,830,404 14,934,696 Financial performance Year ended 30 June 2014 \$ 30 June 2013 \$ \$ Year ended 30 June 2013 \$ \$ Loss for the year (3,322,477) (9,770,383) Other comprehensive income - -	Issued capital	25,907,972	25,907,972
Financial performance Year ended 30 June 2014 \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	Reserves	452,560	234,375
Financial performance Year ended 30 June 2014 \$ 30 June 2013 \$ \$ Loss for the year (3,322,477) (9,770,383) Other comprehensive income - -	Accumulated losses	(14,530,128)	(11,207,651)
Year ended 30 June 2014 30 June 2013 \$	Total equity	11,830,404	14,934,696
30 June 2014 30 June 2013 \$	Financial performance		
Other comprehensive income		30 June 2014	30 June 2013
	Loss for the year	(3,322,477)	(9,770,383)
Total comprehensive result (3,322,477) (9,770,383)	Other comprehensive income	-	-
	Total comprehensive result	(3,322,477)	(9,770,383)

NOTE 21: EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 1 July 2014, 625,000 of the 3,900,000 incentive on issue under the Employee Incentive Plan met their vesting conditions and were exercised and 625,000 ordinary shares were issued.

On 4 August 2014, the Company entered into a conditional agreement to acquire 100% of share capital of leading diversified contractor Central Systems Pty Ltd for a total of 497,175,172 Resource Development Group Limited shares. The acquisition is subject to shareholder approval.

On 8 August 2014, an agreement was reached between Resource Development Group Limited and the employees who had incentives under the Employee Incentive Plan. The incentive plan originally set up in February 2011 will be dissolved prior to the acquisition of Central Systems Pty Ltd with the view of a post-acquisition incentive plan being established. Of the remaining 3,275,000 on issue, 1,185,000 incentives vested and shares issued and the balance of incentives were cancelled.

NOTE 22: AUDITOR'S REMUNERATION

The auditor of Resource Development Group Limited is HLB Mann Judd.

	Consolidated	
	2014	2013
Amounts received or due and receivable by HLB Mann Judd for:	\$	\$
An audit or review of the financial report of the entity and any other entity in the Group	81,250	70,000

NOTE 23: DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES DISCLOSURES

The aggregate compensation made to directors and other key management personnel of the Group is set out below:

	Consolid	Consolidated	
	2014	2013	
	\$	\$	
Short-term employee benefits	696,268	929,453	
Post-employment benefits	54,534	71,664	
Share-based payments	9,000	392	
	759,802	1,001,509	

DIRECTORS' DECLARATION

- 1. In the opinion of the directors of Resource Development Group Limited (the 'Company'):
 - a. the accompanying financial statements and notes are in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001 including:
 - i. giving a true and fair view of the Group's financial position as at 30 June 2014 and of its performance for the year then ended; and
 - ii. complying with Australian Accounting Standards, the Corporations Regulations 2001, professional reporting requirements and other mandatory requirements.
 - b. there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company will be able to pay its debts as and when they become due and payable.
 - c. the financial statements and notes thereto are in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards issued by the International Accounting Standards Board.
- 2. This declaration has been made after receiving the declarations required to be made to the directors in accordance with Section 295A of the Corporations Act 2001 for the financial year ended 30 June 2014.

This declaration is signed in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors.

Mel Ashton

Director

Dated this 28 day of August 2014

M. Ashton



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Accountants | Business and Financial Advisers

To the members of Resource Development Group Limited

Report on the Financial Report

We have audited the accompanying financial report of Resource Development Group Limited ("the company"), which comprises the consolidated statement of financial position as at 30 June 2014, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, notes comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information, and the directors' declaration for the consolidated entity. The consolidated entity comprises the company and the entities it controlled at the year's end or from time to time during the financial year.

Directors' responsibility for the financial report

The directors of the company are responsible for the preparation of the financial report that gives a true and fair view in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and the *Corporations Act 2001* and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial report that is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In Note 1(c), the directors also state, in accordance with Accounting Standard AASB 101: *Presentation of Financial Statements*, that the financial report complies with International Financial Reporting Standards.

Auditor's responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial report based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Those standards require that we comply with relevant ethical requirements relating to audit engagements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial report is free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial report. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the company's preparation and fair presentation of the financial report in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial report.

Our audit did not involve an analysis of the prudence of business decisions made by directors or management.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.



Accountants | Business and Financial Advisers

Independence

In conducting our audit, we have complied with the independence requirements of the *Corporations Act 2001*.

Auditor's opinion

In our opinion:

- (a) the financial report of Resource Development Group Limited is in accordance with the *Corporations Act 2001*, including:
 - (i) giving a true and fair view of the consolidated entity's financial position as at 30 June 2014 and of its performance for the year ended on that date; and
 - (ii) complying with Australian Accounting Standards and the *Corporations Regulations* 2001; and
- (b) the financial report also complies with International Financial Reporting Standards as disclosed in Note 1(c).

Report on the Remuneration Report

We have audited the remuneration report included in the directors' report for the year ended 30 June 2014. The directors of the company are responsible for the preparation and presentation of the remuneration report in accordance with section 300A of the *Corporations Act 2001*. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the remuneration report, based on our audit conducted in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards.

Auditor's opinion

In our opinion the remuneration report of Resource Development Group Limited for the year ended 30 June 2014 complies with section 300A of the *Corporations Act 2001*.

HLB Mann Judd Chartered Accountants

HLB Mann fudd

W M Clark Partner

Celonk

Perth, Western Australia 28 August 2014

Additional Information for Listed Public Companies

Additional information included in accordance with the Listing Rules of the Australian Securities Exchange Limited. The information is current as at 24 August 2014.

1. Shareholdings

Substantial shareholders of Resource Development Group Limited:

Name of shareholder	Shares held
Lightshare Investments Pty Ltd	75,889,606
Mr Jason Carmelo Monzu (J Monzu Family A/c)	6,601,943
Mr Christopher Noel Kane and Mrs Nicole Dianne Kane (C & N Kane Family A/c)	6,601,943

Distribution of equity - Listed securities:

Size of holding	Number of Shareholders
1 – 1,000	3
1,001 – 5,000	15
5,001 – 10,000	39
10,001 – 100,000	309
100,001 – and over	57
Total	423

At the date of this report there were 18 shareholders who held less than a marketable parcel of shares.

Listed securities in Resource Development Group Limited (RDG) are quoted on all member exchanges of the Australian Securities Exchange.

Additional Information for Listed Public Companies (continued)

SHAREHOLDER	SHARES	% OF ISSUED CAPITAL
LIGHTSHARE INVESTMENTS PTY LTD	75,889,606	56.54%
MR JASON CARMELO MONZU (J MONZU FAMILY A/C)	6,601,943	4.92%
MR CHRISTOPHER NOEL KANE & MRS NICOLE DIANNE KANE	6,601,943	4.92%
MR GARRY WILLIAM CONNELL	5,900,605	4.41%
MS CAROL JUNE MACPHERSON	5,051,759	3.76%
MR JON PAUL WRIGHT	3,320,880	2.47%
TIMESFIVE PTY LTD	2,215,862	1.65%
HSBC CUSTODY NOMINEES	1,500,000	1.12%
MR MICHAEL MINKAIH TAN	968,210	0.72%
MR CRAIG MATTHEW JONES	840,270	0.63%
COMSEC NOMINEES PTY LIMITED	741,029	0.57%
MR TOBIN SINCLAIR WALKER	729,608	0.54%
MS JODIE ANNE TEASDALE	729,608	0.54%
MR ANTHONY DE NICOLA & MRS TANYA LOUISE DE NICOLA	720,000	0.54%
MR WAYNE PEEL	663,670	0.49%
CAPEWIND NOMINEES PTY LTD	598,995	0.45%
MR RAYMOND MARK PUGSLEY & JANICE KAY PUGLSEY	500,000	0.37%
MR RUBEN GABRIEL PINDAR	500,000	0.37%
KYSON HOLDINGS PTY LTD	460,000	0.34%
BOTSIS SUPER PTY LTD	450,000	0.34%
TOP 20	114,983,988	85.66%
REMAINING	19,244,907	14.34%
TOTAL SHARES ON ISSUE	134,228,895	100.00%